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Our Values

Our Vision

We deliver on the changing energy needs of Western Australians,  
powered by community trust and the passion of our people.

Safety 
First

We respect and take care of each other, our community and the 
environment. We choose safety – if it’s not safe we don’t do it. 

Customer 
Focus

We accept responsibility, do what we say and think about how 
our work affects others. Our solutions are relevant and make 
financial sense for our community. 

We embrace change and have a go. We challenge the status 
quo to deliver better outcomes. We learn and adapt quickly – 
we’re nimble.

We invite the diverse opinion of others and work together. We 
share ideas that advance our knowledge to develop energy 
solutions for our community.

Be Bold

Teamwork
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Corporate social responsibility at Western Power is based on 

the principle that we care about social, environmental and 

economic issues that impact our people, our customers and 

our communities. 

Western Power is committed to pursuing sustainability outcomes 

across the whole business. To achieve this Western Power has 

set out clear goals for the future.

• To establish a world class health, safety and environmental 

management system that benefits our employees, customers 

and the broader community 

• To embrace a diversity and inclusion culture across our 

business to reflect the diverse communities we operate in and 

ensure our people feel supported to be themselves at work 

• To build a flexible modular grid that supports the changing 

needs of our customers and embraces the use of new 

technologies and innovation

• To provide our customers more choice including clean energy 

options and value for money solutions

• To ensure our business operations and our suppliers 

positively contribute to the communities and value chains in 

which they operate

• To foster stronger partnerships with community organisations.
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We are a Western Australian State 
Government owned corporation and 
our vision is to deliver on the changing 
energy needs of Western Australians, 
powered by community trust and the 
passion of our people.

Our vast transmission and distribution network 
connects Western Australians to a wide range of 
both traditional and renewable energy sources 
to power a modern lifestyle. We have been 
delivering energy safely and reliably for more 
than 70 years and our focus is always firmly on 
continuing this in the future.

The grid connects our community of more than 
two million customers, over an area larger than 
the United Kingdom. Our powerlines span from 
Kalbarri in the north, south to Albany and out 
to Kalgoorlie in the east. Because of Western 
Australia’s geography, we are one of the largest 
island grids in the world.

As rapidly evolving technologies present new 
challenges and opportunities, we’re changing the 
way we operate the network. We’re building a 
more flexible modular grid to ensure our delivery 
of electricity meets the changing needs of our 
customers while allowing energy providers to 
efficiently and effectively operate in the market.

Smart planning, smart technology and smart 
people help us power the State’s economic 
growth. 

Our talented people seamlessly connect homes, 
businesses and essential community infrastructure 
to an increasingly renewable energy mix, 
supercharging our vibrant West Australian lifestyle.

Western Power is governed by an independent 
Board of non-executive directors reporting to 
the Minister for Energy, representing our State 
Government owner. Our performance is overseen 
by the Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) 
who ensure a fair, competitive and efficient 
environment for consumers and businesses. 

We’re regulated through an Access Arrangement 
made under the Electricity Networks Access 
Code 2004 (WA). The Access Arrangement sets 
service performance targets and how much we 
can charge to allow access to the network.

Our safety performance is regulated by the 
Building and Energy Division of the Department 
of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety.

In a rapidly changing landscape, our customers’ 
energy needs are evolving, and we intend on 
keeping them connected every step of the way. 
Whether it’s residents connecting their dream 
home, developers building a shopping complex 
or a stadium hosting a world class sporting event, 
we’re there to deliver.

We’re proud of our history and our people, and 
even prouder to be at the heart of Western 
Australia’s energy future.

About Western Power

2+ million 
customers

103,000 km 
of wires

275,000 
streetlights

2750 
employees

153
substations
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Our FY20 Annual Report is released 
in a challenging global setting, 
completely different from a year 
ago. The emergence and spread of 
COVID-19 and its health, social and 
economic impact has been immense. 

As an essential service to the vast majority 
of Western Australians, we took quick and 
decisive actions to ensure our network was 
able to maintain reliable and safe supply to our 
customers. I am immensely proud of everyone at 
Western Power for their willingness to change the 
way they worked in response to the health threat 
from COVID-19 and to do what it takes to ‘keep 
the lights on’. On behalf of the Board I thank them.

Before then we had to deal with some 
unprecedented weather events, such as the 
one-in-50-year storm, which impacted on our 
reliability performance. We’re developing new 
procedures which we expect to help improve our 
response to these events, without compromising 
our focus on the safety of our people or the 
public.

2019-20 was a foundational year for Western 
Power. Our innovative planning for the rapidly 
changing future of Western Australia’s energy 
landscape saw real outcomes delivered and 
milestones achieved.

With significant in-roads made into evolution of 
the network, refreshed leadership and legislative 
changes, our strong performance reflected our 
commitment to deliver better service for our 2.3 
million customers.

The current restrictions on international trade 
and movement provides further support for the 
State Government’s policies to increase local 
participation in procurement supply chains. In 
line with last year, more than 99 per cent of our 
goods, services and materials were procured 
from Australian businesses, of which 76 per cent 
are operating in WA.

Although the COVID-19 pandemic created 
shock waves through the global supply chain 
network, we were able to continue to operate 
at full capacity throughout this period without 
any material shortages, which demonstrates the 
robust nature of our supplier base and supply 
chain strategy.

During the challenging times we face as a 
result of the pandemic, our focus remains on 
Sustainable Procurement and our response has 
included accelerating works in regional areas and 
reducing supplier payment timeframes to support 
the wider community. 

Developing a diverse supplier base is a priority 
and we continue to meet all targets set under the 
State’s Aboriginal Procurement Policy Standard 
with 11 contracts now awarded to Aboriginal 
businesses.

Last year, ‘green shoots’ were appearing as 
early signs of the transformation of the network 
into a flexible modular grid which leverages new 
technology, supports new energy sources, and 
puts our customers and the community at the 
centre of everything we do. These “green shoots” 
are now showing signs of blossom. 

The passing of the Electricity Industry Amendment 
Bill 2019 (WA) was a significant milestone and 
I would like to thank the Government and our 
Minister for their support on this important step.

Chairman’s Message
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The new legislative changes will ensure our 
business continues to power the lives of Western 
Australians by offering greater choices through 
options such as Stand-alone Power Systems (SPS) 
and community batteries. 

The Bill was the first step in robust regulatory 
reform to facilitate two-way electricity flows 
across our increasingly sophisticated platform 
to enable safe and efficient constrained network 
access. It complemented our successful 
Generator Interim Access agreements, under 
which three projects were granted access 
contracts this year. There are more than 60 
projects seeking connection to Western Power’s 
network, many of which form part of WA’s energy 
future and are critical components of economic 
growth. Facilitating connection of renewable 
energy sources will provide a greener, more 
sustainable energy future for the WA community. 

We acknowledge the impacts of climate change 
and the associated challenges of decarbonising 
our economy. We continue to support 
Government and collaborate with industry to 
tackle climate change and its impacts.

The bushfires experience across Australia 
earlier this year received global attention again 
highlighting the need to ensure we are considering 
future impacts of an ever-changing environment. 
To this end, we are enhancing our understanding 
of the impacts of climate change on the business 
and supporting ongoing measures to improve the 
resilience of the network. 

Our SPS project is one such example of 
improving network resilience, with every system 
delivered representing a reduction in kilometres of 
line exposed to the impacts of climate change. 

Additionally, our community battery trial in 
Perenjori has demonstrated the benefits of 
large-scale batteries for communities which have 
struggled with power reliability from climate-
induced outages.

We continue to play a role in the implementation 
of the State Government’s Energy Transformation 
Strategy. As part of the strategy the WA Distributed 
Energy Resources Roadmap was released in April, 
which outlines a five-year action plan to harness 
opportunities for cleaner, more affordable energy 
that will provide customers with greater choice and 
control over how they access, use and manage 
electricity. Our installation of advanced metering 
infrastructure during the year is just one example of 
our work which supports the roadmap.

We began installing 52 SPS units planned for 
Round 1 and received support from the Minister 
for Energy to continue planning subsequent 
rounds. In addition, a PowerBank 2 trial was 
launched in Ellenbrook to better manage peak 
demands and a further 10 community batteries 
were installed to allow more families to access 
affordable energy storage. 

It has been a year of renewal in leadership and 
on behalf of the Board, I am pleased to welcome 
Ed Kalajzic to the role of Chief Executive Officer. 
Ed’s drive, leadership and detailed knowledge 
of the Western Australian business landscape 
will ensure we are well placed during this time of 
rapid transformation. 

I acknowledge our former Managing Director, 
Guy Chalkley, who led the business from 2016. 
He led the organisation through major change 
and has left a positive legacy. I wish him well in 
his future endeavours.

Finally, thanks to the Board and all staff for 
their contributions to Western Power and our 
customers during a challenging year.

 
Colin Beckett 
Chairman

“there are more than 
60 projects seeking 

connection to Western 
Power’s network”
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At Western Power, we’re proud to 
be entrusted with powering the lives 
and livelihoods of 2.3 million Western 
Australians.

In the time following my appointment as Western 
Power’s new Chief Executive Officer, it has been 
an honour to lead and meet the teams who are 
so critical to our customers and the economic 
growth of our State.

Our commitment to putting the community at 
the centre underpins our business operations, 
future-focused planning and the use of innovation 
ensuring we’re at the forefront of the rapidly 
changing energy sector.

This commitment is clearly demonstrated by 
the successful achievement of key milestones 
during 2019-20 including the Perth CBD Hay to 
Milligan project. This significant work required 
close engagement with some of the State’s most 
high-profile venues including RAC Arena and the 
State Theatre Centre of WA. The project involved 
the upgrade of critical pieces of state electricity 
infrastructure ensuring long-term secure and 
improved power for Perth’s CBD, helping to 
deliver a bright future for the city and the state.

 
We worked very closely with the community 
during our response to bushfires that burnt 
through 13,000 hectares near Yanchep during 
December 2019 and early 2020. Our crews 
swung into action once the fire ground was 
declared safe, replacing more than 150 poles, 
15km of powerlines and inspecting all structures 
individually. Our sophisticated modelling gave 
us time to prepare by postponing non-essential 
works and diverting resources to ensure affected 
customers were reconnected to the network as 
quickly as possible. 

Further afield, the State’s biggest solar farm 
at Merredin was connected to the network 
under a Generator Interim Access agreement, 
contributing 274GW hours of renewable energy 
annually to the network – enough to power 
42,000 homes. Greenough Solar Farm also 
increased capacity from 10MW to 40MW and 
was commissioned in early 2020.

CEO Message 

“transforming the 
SWIS to a truly customer-

focused network that 
employs innovative 

technology at 
scale”

Hay to Milligan major infrastructure upgrade will deliver a bright future for the CBD and the state.
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There was also good news on wind with the 
Yandin Wind Farm connected to our network 
in June. By the end of September 2020, 
these turbines will send 210MW of clean, 
green energy through the terminal to the grid 
and on to customers - Yandin will become 
WA’s largest wind farm. The terminal was 
designed, constructed and commissioned 

within 17 months, and connects the wind farm 
with the grid via 10km of 330kV transmission 
line. Significant work was also done on the 
Warradarge Wind Farm during the year enabling 
the first energisation of the terminal and line to 
occur in July 2020.

I am pleased that continued connection and use 
of technologies such as SPS was assured with 
the passing of the Electricity Industry Amendment 
Bill in early April 2020. 

This provides us with regulatory approval to use 
SPS and storage devices, as well as allowing 
for subsequent amendments to be made to the 
Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 (WA) to 
ensure that the cost of these technologies can be 
recovered through regulated tariffs. 

These amendments will ultimately provide 
substantial benefits to customers in the South 
West Interconnected System (SWIS), by 
transforming the SWIS to a truly customer-
focused network that employs innovative 
technology at scale to enable the transition to a 
low-carbon future. 

Our commitment to transformation has naturally 
resulted in an increased reliance on technology, 
particularly ‘cloud based’ systems. To protect 
against the growing volume and sophistication 
of cyber threat, we undertook a comprehensive 
assessment and prioritised a $23 million 
investment program (2018-2021) to further 
enhance our network protection.

Also, in technology, our Enterprise Asset 
Management solution (Ellipse) was upgraded to 
improve day-to-day asset management. It was 
a huge undertaking involving 215 processes, 
more than 2,700 users and 92 integrated systems 
resulting in business efficiency outcomes and 
providing a sound foundation on which to build.

“transforming the 
SWIS to a truly customer-

focused network that 
employs innovative 

technology at 
scale”

Future Directions 2020 was designed to inform 
and engage our employees in our business’ future 
focused vision.

Our innovative projects play a critical role in 
supporting the State’s economic growth.
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Highlights from our depot modernisation program 
this year included the start of construction of our 
new Pinjarra depot, which will consolidate the 
Mandurah and Waroona depots and improve 
service efficiency in the region.

With assets spread across 250,000km2 and 
exposed to the elements we have a vested 
interest in acknowledging the impacts of climate 
change on our network. 

We’ve taken a pragmatic approach to adapting 
to these challenges. Our governance framework 
captures risks posed by external challenges and 
facilitates their consideration in the context of 
future investment across the business. 

This approach has supported a change in 
our thinking about what it takes to operate 
the network and how we can achieve our 
organisational objectives. Already, our 
investments and innovative approaches to finding 
solutions are supporting the rapid deployment 
of large-scale renewables connecting to the 
network, alongside our efforts to support the 
State Government with its ambitious plan to 
transition to a distributed energy future via its 
Energy Transformation Strategy.

In the future it’s important that we continue 
to refine our approach to reporting on climate 
change, ensuring that its impacts and our 
responses are adequately communicated to our 
customers and the community. 

During 2019-20 five of our employees suffered 
injuries at work serious enough for them to be 
unable to return to work the next day. While 
the work we do is considered high-risk, these 
incidents are unacceptable and preventable. 

So, in 2020-21 I will be supporting the Workplace 
Health and Safety Critical Risk Management 
project to better manage the risks that can cause 
us the most harm by ensuring controls to prevent 
serious incidents are in place and effective. 

Throughout Western Power, our shared values 
of Safety First, Customer Focus, Be Bold and 
Teamwork are evident in the way each team 
member goes about their work, and how we 
operate as a collective. 

This is demonstrated by our wood pole program 
end of year position; I’m pleased to say that we 
replaced 11,459 poles this year - over 300 above 
our target. This is a fantastic result.

It is truly our people who are the driving force 
behind our success, and their commitment to 
our values is reflected in the recognition our 
organisation and people have achieved during 
the year.

The value and expertise of our workforce was 
recognised when two of our team were named 
recipients of Australian Institute of Energy awards: 
Matt Cheney jointly won Energy Professional of 
the Year, and Genevieve Simpson was named 
Young Energy Leader of the Year.

We were shortlisted for the Digital Utility of the 
Year Award – reflecting an across-the-board 
commitment to transforming our network. Our 
pole top fire modelling initiative put us in the 
top five most innovative agriculture, mining and 
utility companies in Australia as judged by the 
Australian Financial Review, with Western Power 
the only public utility to make the list.
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We were also the only Australian company to be 
awarded the highest certification possible from 
the internationally recognised Chartered Institute 
of Procurement and Supply, putting us among a 
group of just 15 companies worldwide listed at 
Platinum level in procurement standards. 

Likewise, our Asset Management System 
achieved ISO 55001, an international standard 
accreditation in August 2019.

Such recognition does not happen quickly; it is 
the result of a daily commitment to our values, 
to innovation and to putting the focus on our 
customers.

I want to acknowledge and apologise for 
past errors which resulted in unintentional 
underpayments to some of our employees 
who were underpinned by the Western Power 
and Australian Services Union (ASU) Enterprise 
Agreement over a number of years. We identified 
the errors and self-reported in August 2019 to 
the Fair Work Ombudsman, and advised our 
employees and the ASU. It has been a business 
priority to review our processes, back pay 
impacted employees and amend our systems 
to ensure all Western Power employees are 
correctly paid.

In closing, I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank my recent predecessors in the role: 
Guy Chalkley for his leadership through our 
transformation journey and acting Chief Executive 
Officer Dave Fyfe, whose fine leadership during 
the start of COVID-19 earned Western Power 
recognition around the country for a steady 
approach to business during very uncertain 
times. I would also like to commend and 
recognise the efforts of our employees for their 
dedication and commitment to delivering a critical 
service during this time. 

Ed Kalajzic 
CEO

Our Asset Management System achieved ISO 55001, 
an international standard accreditation in August 2019.



Safety 

We put safety first – for our employees, 
our customers and our community. In 
recent years we’ve made steady and 
sustained enhancements in the way 
we manage safety across all aspects 
of our business. 

We have maintained a consistent level of 
safety performance over the past three years. 
Throughout 2019-20 the safety of our people 
resulted in a Total Recordable Injury Frequency 
Rate of 4.4 per million hours worked. While this 
level of performance remains among the best in 
our industry at a national level, we’re still working 
to achieve our Safety, Health and Environment 
vision that everyone goes home safe and healthy 
every day. 

To achieve this, everyone has to be involved, from 
our crews who build and maintain our network, 

to our CEO. Our journey towards this goal started 
in 2017 and is mapped out through our five-year 
Safety Maturity Strategy. 

Safety Maturity Strategy

We’ve focused on upskilling our leaders and 
engaging and empowering our employees in 
safety, with particular emphasis on our Health 
and Safety Employee (HSE) representatives. Our 
Safety Leadership Program (SLP) delivered more 
than 40 Safety Leader sessions, capturing more 
than 80 per cent of our formal leader group. 

These safety leader modules aim to create a 
shared vision and provide the skills to enable our 
leaders to not only fulfil their legislative obligations 
but to also create and nurture a mature safety 
culture among their teams. In November 2019 we 
launched new SLP training modules to increase 
our leaders’ risk assessment skills and provide 
them with tools and techniques to proactively 
identify and mitigate psychological risks. 

OUR STORY | YANCHEP BUSHFIRE
From extreme heat and bushfires to thunderous storms, WA was battered by Mother Nature during 
2019-20. Last summer’s bushfires in Yanchep and surrounding areas caused extensive damage to 
homes and businesses as well as parts of the electricity network. 

Our teams worked around the clock with other emergency crews to help repair the damage and safely 
restore power to our customers affected by the bushfire in Yanchep, Woodbridge and Two Rocks.

The restoration followed a significant rebuild of fire-damaged parts of the network by more than 70 
crew members in the Breakwater and Seatrees areas, and individual home and business inspections 
by the WA Electrical Inspectors.

The size and longevity of the bushfire and the extreme weather conditions at the time meant that we knew 
there would be significant damage to the network with resulting customer power outages in the area. 

We prepared for this by cancelling planned outage works in the metropolitan area to boost crew numbers 
and called in extra crews from other depots including Mandurah, Waroona, Picton and Vasse.

We also began stockpiling resources and assets at a temporary depot near the Two Rocks townsite to 
assist with the speed of reconstruction work.

The collaboration, spirit and professionalism of our crews on the ground, support functions and 
network operations centre was fantastic, and it was a great achievement to restore power to people in 
the area ahead of schedule.
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We’re also planning new projects which aim to 
improve our management of critical workplace 
health and safety risks and the way in which 
we work with our contract partners. These will 
be launched in 2020-21. These projects were 
born from a safety performance and trending 
review and will provide us with a safer and more 
consultative way of doing things and a more robust 
risk foundation for our assurance framework. 

Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Our Health and Wellbeing program was revamped 
during the year and focuses on different themes 
for each calendar quarter, providing three months 
to properly explore each one.

The program was built on data collected through 
a 1000 employee strong response to our 
Wellbeing360 online health assessment tool.

The inaugural focus was mental health, which 
included 32 `RU OK?’ events during Sept - Oct 
2019, and the roll out of a new Mental Health First 
Aid resource kit to all depots and our Perth office. 
The strategy is paying off with our January health 
assessment showing a four per cent improvement 
in the reported mental health of our employees. 

This is an outstanding result when benchmarked 
against other companies whose results declined.

The Yanchep bushfire coincided with heatwave conditions and a number of other bushfires around the 
State, which caused fire damage to assets and power outages at a number of locations.

Western Power thanks all its customers for their understanding and support, and the Department of 
Fire and Emergency Services, local fire brigades and the City of Wanneroo for their cooperation and 
collaboration during this incident.
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We held 40 Safety Leader sessions, capturing more than 80 per cent of our formal leader group.

Our crews worked around the clock with other emergency crews to help safely repair the damage and restore power 
to our customers as quickly as possible.
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360 Aware – Game Plan

360 Aware is an industry focused campaign 
emphasising the importance for employees to be 
aware of their surroundings. A critical part of 360 
Aware is our Game Plan campaign, now in its 
second year.

Game Plan brings an elite athlete mindset to the 
workplace to educate and support businesses 
and tradespeople to work safely around the 
electricity network without incident.

Western Power provides free presentations 
tailored to each business or project, factoring in 
specific jobs, locations and habits.

To maximise engagement, the sessions are 
presented at all hours of the day, including 4am 
pre-start meetings or night shift gatherings. The 
take-away for crews is always the same, ‘Before 
anything risky, look 360’ and make the safe call.

Make the Safe Call 

Our new look Make the Safe Call campaign hit 
television screens across WA in March. The 
campaign was designed to provide both a clear 
course of action and sense of calm and control 
for people who find themselves in potential 
danger from an electrical emergency. 

Advertisements featured three key scenarios: 
a damaged powerline, managing trees near 
powerlines and, in a first for Western Power 
advertising, a damaged green dome. The 
third scenario was in response to increasing 
customer incidents with damaged green domes 
– about 3,500 in the 2019 calendar year alone. 
The domes are mainly found in areas with 
underground power, and a damaged green dome 
is as dangerous as a fallen powerline.

Shocks and Tingles

Western Power partnered with Horizon 
Power and the Department of Mines, Industry 
Regulation and Safety’s Building and Energy 
Division to deliver a state-wide safety campaign 
to educate the public on how to respond if they 
experience an electrical shock or tingle at home.

The campaign positioned Western Power as 
the priority point of call for all electrical incidents 
and emergencies within the home. It provided 
education on the most likely causes of shocks 
and tingles, and how to take the necessary steps 
to keep safe.

Shocks and Tingles launched in March and was the first joint state-wide campaign designed to educate the public on 
how to respond to shocks and tingles at home.
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Our people

At the heart of Western Power is our 
people. Our employees play a vital 
role in creating a safe, enjoyable and 
innovative workplace, while living our 
values and delivering exceptional 
customer service. 

The results of our annual employee engagement 
survey continue to improve, with the overall 
engagement score increasing from 83 to 85 per 
cent in 2020.

We continue our commitment to create career 
opportunities for young Western Australians, 
offering a range of different entry level programs. 
This year we welcomed 15 apprentices, five 
trainees and 10 graduates, as well as providing 
university level engineering vacation work and 
supporting industry relevant scholarships. 

People Plan 

As a key enabler for our Business Strategy, 
the People Plan facilitates the best use of our 
peoples’ skills and focusses efforts to strengthen 
and engage employees. 

Several of the Plan’s initiatives were delivered this 
year including:

•  Developing and releasing a company-wide 
Competency Framework and enhancements 
to the MySuccess performance management 
system. Together these have simplified and 
improved the performance planning process, 
clearly linking strategic objectives to teams 
and individuals.

•  Launching a corporate onboarding and 
induction program. This new program, 
offered both face-to-face and virtually, caters 
for our diverse and dispersed workforce and 
sets up new starters for success.

•  Implementing a new Leadership Development 
Framework, providing leaders the tools to 
develop their leadership competency targeted 
to individual needs and aligned to our 
Competency Framework. 

Diversity and Inclusion

This year we participated in and hosted events for 
International Women’s Day (IWD) in March 2020 
including two events at Perth office and Jandakot 
where employees heard stories from women in 
our business and external guests. 

A joint IWD event with Synergy, Horizon Power 
and PwC was livestreamed for people unable to 
attend in person. 

We hosted a number of International Women’s Day (IWD) events during 2020.
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The event featured keynote speaker Fadzi 
Whande, our newly appointed Principal 
Consultant Diversity and Inclusion, as well as 
an engaging panel with Executive Manager 
Sam Barbaro. 

We also demonstrated our commitment to 
diversity and inclusion through supporting the 
Power Team at the 2019 Perth Pride Parade – a 
joint initiative with Synergy and Horizon Power. 

Unintentional underpayments

In August 2019, we identified errors in the way 
we had applied the ‘better off overall’ test to 
employees on Individual Agreement (IAs) and 
Flexibility Agreements (FAs) underpinned by the 
Australian Services Union Enterprise Agreement 
(ASU EA). In addition, we identified that we 
had incorrectly varied entitlements that could 
not legitimately be varied from the ASU EA. As 
a result, a number of employees were found 
to have been unintentionally underpaid over a 
number of years. 

We self-reported this error to the Fair Work 
Ombudsman and have kept them and the 
ASU informed as to how we rectified these 
unintentional underpayments for current and 
former employees. We have reviewed and 
amended processes where necessary to ensure 
employees are paid correctly going forward.

We apologise to all our current and former 
employees for this error. Impacted current 
employees began receiving payments in April 
2020, and all payments to impacted current and 
located former employees are scheduled to be 
complete by 1 October 2020.
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OUR STORY | COVID-19
With more than two million customers in a State as vast as Western Australia, it’s critical for our 
business that we continue to meet the energy needs of our community during the COVID-19 
pandemic.

We are committed to keeping the lights on, supporting our customers’ family and business needs, 
particularly with more and more people working from home. Our plan is and has always been, to keep 
our customers connected through safeguarding our people and our operations. 

We developed a COVID-19 Response Plan to ensure business continuity as a critical infrastructure and 
service operator and a key supporter of the WA economy.

Our people
The health and safety of our people comes first. They are the backbone of our business, whether it 
be our maintenance and emergency response crews, network controllers, customer service team or 
support functions. All play a valuable role in delivering an essential service to our community.

We instigated new measures to protect them while they carry out work during COVID-19. In our offices 
and depots, we made changes to enable physical distancing and ramped up our cleaning regimes. 
For our employees in the community, we changed the size of crews, increased vehicle numbers so 
employees travel on their own as best as possible and provided new personal protective equipment. 
We introduced fortnightly working from home rosters to add another layer of protection for employees 
and the network.

Our customers 
We continued to undertake important work across the network, which was a critical part of our 
strategy to maintain energy supply throughout the pandemic.

Our people continue to carry out essential maintenance so that any unplanned outages caused by 
storms, bushfires and the like, can be minimised. Our work was also planned around our community 
needs, so unless absolutely necessary, no work was carried out that could affect power supply to 
hospitals, schools and other essential services such as water and telecommunications sites.

We’re doing everything we can, as part of the WA community, to make sure that the safe and reliable 
delivery of power to our customers is a certainty.
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Evolution of our network

Significant progress was made 
during 2019-20 in transforming the 
grid by leveraging technologies, 
developing data-based modelling 
and connecting renewable energy 
sources. 

Our approach has been supported by the WA 
Government’s Energy Transformation Strategy, 
which influences how we reshape our business 
to support the changing energy mix, evolve our 
grid solutions and connect and support our 
customers interactions with the grid. 

With the passing of the Electricity Industry 
Amendment Bill 2019 (WA), Western Power is 
now able to include stand-alone power systems 
and distribution-connected batteries. It allows 
for subsequent amendments to be made to the 
Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 (WA) to 
ensure that the cost of these technologies can be 
recovered through regulated tariffs in its regulated 
asset base. 

The release of WA’s Distributed Energy 
Resources (DER) Roadmap marks an exciting 
new phase for energy in WA and one that we 
are proud to be part of. It sets out measures 
to overcome technical, regulatory and market 
barriers to help us integrate these resources into 
the grid. We look forward to continuing to work 
with Energy Policy WA, Horizon Power, Synergy 
and the Australian Energy Market Operator to 
implement the Roadmap.

When it’s delivered later this year, the Whole 
of System Plan for the South West will identify 
the best options for investment in our power 
system. With a focus on maintaining system 
security and reliability at the lowest sustainable 
cost, the plan will assist in the transition to 
a lower-emissions power system and guide 
efficient power system investment.

These options will consider the opportunities 
to introduce new technologies available to 
us, including energy storage, and efficiently 
integrate more renewable generation into our 
grid rather than depend solely on traditional 
network augmentation.

Stand-alone power systems

Western Power is establishing a new frontier in 
greener energy supply for regional customers 
with SPS. Providing reliable power supply to 
remote areas is challenging. Distance, hard-to-
access terrain, and diverse landscapes – along 
with damaging storms and bushfires – can 
impact network infrastructure and therefore 
power reliability for our customers.

Currently around 50 per cent of our overhead 
distribution network services less than three per 
cent of our customers. Our modelling shows that 
installing thousands of SPS over the next 30 years 
could avoid millions of dollars in maintenance 
while facilitating greener, sustainable energy.

Following the successful three-year trial in 2016, 
we began commissioning 52 SPS in 2019-20, 
which will realise an estimated $4 million net 
benefit when assessed over 50 years compared 
to the traditional network. It will also enable the 
ability to de-energise 230km of overhead assets. 

Our SPS project is delivering real on-ground benefits 
to our regional customers.
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We began engaging with the community in 
January 2020 for a further roll-out of 100 units in 
2021, and we’ve had 100 per cent opt-in rates.

The potential deployment of around 6,000 
units over coming years will enable the 
decommissioning of over 23,000km of overhead 
assets – 17 per cent of the whole network – 
providing significant cost savings. For each SPS 
installation, typically 19 wood poles and 3.8km of 
conductor are decommissioned.

Our use of SPS has generated direct benefits 
for WA’s economy through supporting local 
businesses to build and deliver SPS solutions.
We’re also continuing to engage and collaborate 
with national network providers, particularly 
following the 2019-20 summer bushfires. 

Strategic workforce planning identified 
opportunities to upskill our employees to 
operate and maintain the units, providing flexible 
resources and supporting their diverse expertise 
and experiences that align to our organisation’s 
future focus.

Community batteries

Community batteries play an important role in 
transforming our grid. There are currently two 
types of batteries being used as part of our 
network: large network batteries that form part of 
a microgrid, like the one in the Mid West town of 
Perenjori, and smaller scale community batteries.

These batteries allow for excess energy to be 
stored and used at a later time when needed. 
Our community battery program benefits the 
entire community, whether they have solar panels 
or not, as the batteries are placed in areas where 
the network would otherwise need upgrading or 
adjusting to maintain power reliability and quality. 

Community batteries also allow customers to 
store and share electricity derived from their 
solar photo-voltaic panels (PVs). This technology 
is helping to maximise renewable energy while 
keeping downward pressure on the average 
cost of connection for customers. It’s a win-
win for Western Power, our customers and the 
communities across the south-west of WA.

In February, Western Power partnered with 
Synergy to launch the PowerBank 2 trial, the next 
step in an Australian-first trial of shared battery 
power banking. A 116kwt (464kW hour) Tesla 
battery was installed in Ellenbrook – the third of 
its kind in WA and followed earlier successful 
PowerBank installations in Meadow Springs and 
Falcon in Mandurah. The 24-month PowerBank 
2 trial will provide eligible Ellenbrook homes with 
access of up to 6kW hour or 8kW hour of battery 
storage technology with no upfront costs

Since early 2020, we’ve been installing a 
further 10 community batteries in Canning 
Vale, Ellenbrook (second one), Port Kennedy, 
Busselton, Two Rocks, Ashby, Yokine, Kalgoorlie, 
Margaret River and Parmelia-Kwinana. 

Thirteen community batteries are being rolled out enabling our customers to store and share electricity derived from 
their solar PVs.
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Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI)

Western Power’s installation of advanced 
metering infrastructure across the SWIS has 
progressed as planned this year, with over 
100,000 advanced meters installed, the 
backbone radio mesh set-up across the Perth 
metropolitan area and the necessary information 
technology systems and software in place. 

Customers with advanced meters will over time 
enjoy the benefits of greater billing accuracy by 
removing the need for estimated meter reads, 
better outage management, early identification 
and resolution of power quality fluctuations, 
more detailed information about energy usage 
and remote re-energisation leading to a faster 
reconnection process.

Generator Interim Access

Merredin Solar Farm is the third, and most recent, 
Generator Interim Access (GIA) renewable project 
to connect to the grid, bringing the total output 
of GIA renewable energy projects connected in 
the past 12 months to 240MW. By the end of 
2020, more than 600MW of low-cost renewable 
generation, including the State’s biggest 
windfarm at Yandin, will be connected to the 
Western Power network via the GIA solution.

The GIA solution has been critical in facilitating 
the effective connection of low-cost renewable 
energy generators to the network. 

 

100MW - Alternative Energy Options Pilot 
Project

Western Power is partnering with energy retailers 
and WA businesses to build flexibility services 
into commercial and industrial customer solutions 
as part of our drive to create a more sustainable, 
reliable and innovative network for the future.

The 100MW - Alternate Energy Options Pilot 
Project aims to demonstrate how alternative 
energy options help commercial and industrial 
customers realise the value of their distributed 
energy resources while supporting the network. 

Through the project, WA businesses can manage 
their distributed energy resources (such as solar 
PVs, batteries and manageable loads like heating 
and cooling systems) in a way that provides 
network support, in return for compensation by 
Western Power. 

The pilot builds the capability we will need to help 
deliver on the WA Government’s Distributed Energy 
Resources Roadmap released in April 2020.

Yandin Wind Farm

Western Australia’s largest new wind farm at 
Yandin, near Dandaragan, was supported by 
Western Power this year through a $46 million 
project to construct a 10km transmission line and 
terminal station to connect the wind farm to the 
330kV electricity network. 

Around 100,000 advanced meters have been 
installed across the network during the past year.

Western Australia’s largest new wind farm at Yandin, 
near Dandaragan.
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Yandin comprises 51 turbines, each with a 
capacity of 4.2MW, and at full capacity the Alinta 
Energy-owned project will supply 210MW to 
the network. The $400 million farm sits on Yued 
Noongar country and first works at the site were 
marked with a Welcome to Country. 

Hay to Milligan upgrade

This year, a project to lay new conduits and 
cables to reinforce the network supplying Perth’s 
CBD afforded Western Power the opportunity 
to develop a new way of working with improved 
customer focus. One of the largest upgrades in 
metropolitan Perth in more than two decades, 
the Hay to Milligan project included upgrading 
two substations to facilitate a 132kV cable and 
tunnel boring under two railway crossings.

Construction techniques deployed as part 
of the $33 million project were designed to 
minimise disruption with community engagement 
undertaken with major local venues including 
Perth Arena and the State Theatre Centre of 
WA. A doorknock and brochure drop campaign 
was followed by hand-delivery of letters from 
construction partner Daly’s Construction to 
ensure major businesses were kept up to date on 
the project’s progress and impacts.

A key strategy was to undertake construction 
in short sections where required. Each night 
along Milligan and Pier streets, contractors 
excavated, installed conduit and covered it over 
with fresh tar seal ready to be driven over the 
next morning. Working in 20 metre sections 
ensured that disruption was minimised, and the 
majority of office-hours workers in the area were 
undisturbed by the major works taking place 
close to their offices. 

Digital substations

During 2019-20 we developed and conducted 
a six-month digital substation pilot to see if 
intrusive maintenance intervals and costs could 
be reduced while increasing the reliability, safety, 
flexibility and availability of network assets.

The project included installing and commissioning 
78 devices supplied and installed by nine vendors, 
across 12 different assets at two substations - 
Midland Junction and Southern River.

The first set of online condition monitoring devices 
commenced installation in August 2019 at the 
Midland Junction substation. This was a two-
month staged exercise to install and commission 
a variety of online condition monitoring devices 
to measure dissolved combustible gasses in 
transformer oil, moisture content and temperature 
of oil and HV bushing condition.

The six-month trial concluded in December 
2019 with results exceeding expectations and 
producing several key benefits for our customers 
and our business including cost-saving in 
intrusive maintenance intervals; better asset 
forecasting models with live asset condition 
information; reduced unplanned outages and 
downtime; cost-saving and life extension of 
assets by proactive performance monitoring; and 
optimised and proven communication methods 
between field devices and office-based systems.

Smart streetlights

The City of Melville became the first local 
government in WA to have 100 new luminaires 
smart streetlights installed during the year, as part 
of an underground power project. 

The lights employ photocell technology and 
have the capacity to communicate with Western 
Power’s control centre via a very low-level radio 
frequency similar to that experienced when 
listening to a radio in a car.

100 smart streetlights were installed in the City of 
Melville as part of our smart streetlights trial.
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In the community 

Circuit breakers

Western Power’s innovative and exciting science 
school-based engagement program Circuit 
Breakers continued in 2019-20.

Beginning as a small science, technology, 
engineering and mathematics (STEM) outreach 
program to foster primary students’ involvement, 
awareness and enjoyment of science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics, 
it has evolved into an integrated education-
wide initiative with more than 70 public and 
independent schools taking part.

The program immerses students in the STEM 
processes of creating their own electrical 
network of the future thereby building 
understanding and skills using micro bit mini-
computers and coding activities. 

Designed collaboratively by teachers and 
Western Power engineers, it engages and 
challenges Year 4-6 students to think outside 
the box, widen their decision-making and use 
their imagination. Schools were supported by 
visiting STEM professionals from Western Power 
and gifted the technology kits required to bolster 
future STEM learning capabilities.

Last year the program reached its 30-school 
capacity as soon as it opened. Overall 156 
schools applied based on their previous student 
and teacher engagement success, with a 100 
per cent satisfaction rate achieved. 

More than 1,000 students, with around 56 per 
cent female, participated in 2019 with some 
schools integrating the program into their whole-
of-school digital technology curriculum.

This year the program has been expanded to 
enable more metropolitan and regional schools in 
WA to take part. 

Community engagement 

As a critical service and infrastructure provider 
in the State with around 3,000 employees we’re 
part of the WA community. Where possible 
we aim to support community organisations 
including the Association of Volunteer Bushfire 
Brigades, Housing Industry of Australia, Urban 
Development Institute of Australia, GemTek 
Automation, Perth Machine Learning Group and 
local initiatives such Kalbarri Town Talk. We also 
donate poles for community projects including 
nature playgrounds, and this year, for an osprey 
nest in Lancelin. Our employees also undertake a 
range of fundraising initiatives through the Team 
Giving committee.

Our Community Engagement team manages 
engagement with community stakeholders for a 
range of Western Power initiatives. This includes 
emerging technology and capital works projects, 
customer funded work, planned maintenance, 
attending regional field days, liaising with 
landowners and building relationships with 
traditional owners. 

Our community engagement team attended community forums during the Yanchep bushfire to help and support 
those affected.
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Engagement event Description

NAIDOC Family Day Community event held as part of NAIDOC Week.

Hay-Milligan Perth CBD community 
engagement

Doorknock and letter drop residents and businesses along the 
cable route to keep updated ahead of construction.

Geraldton stakeholder events Hosted by Western Power Board and Executive.

Perth City Link community engagement Doorknock of residents and businesses as well as drop-in 
session to discuss the project.

Bedfordale and Banksia Grove bushfire 
readiness community event

Providing information on how to prepare for bushfire season and 
the impact of bushfire controls on Western Power’s operations.

Denmark telecommunications tower Community drop-in session providing the opportunity to discuss 
the proposed telecommunications tower face to face.

Visits to SPS customers Visiting potential SPS customers ahead of installation of 52 units 
as part of SPS Round 1.

Yanchep and Gingin community 
meetings

Providing daily updates and advice to community members who 
had been evacuated from their homes as a result of bushfires.

Yanchep emergency services, City of 
Wanneroo thank you event

Community event held in Yanchep for bushfire affected residents 
and emergency services representatives.

PowerBank 2 launch Launch event for the PowerBank in Ellenbrook. Conducted with 
project partner Synergy.

Picton South Regulatory Test public 
consultation

Public consultation as part of the Regulatory Test for proposed 
investment in the Picton South network. Community forums held 
in Perth and Bunbury.

Local Government Professionals – Mid-
West Branch meeting

Held in Perenjori. Western Power was guest speaker regarding 
the Perenjori microgrid.

Powering East Perth Doorknock of residents and business along Stage 1 cable route 
to discuss project and deliver brochure ahead of construction.

Geraldton community meeting Visit to Geraldton to discuss power reliability in the area. 
Conducted with Minister for Energy, Hon Bill Johnston MLA. 

Pinjarra Depot construction ceremony

Minister for Energy, Hon Bill Johnston MLA and Western Power 
CEO Guy Chalkley along with local Members of Parliament, 
Shire representatives and community members attended the 
construction ceremony. 

Regional shows

Chapman Valley Show Regional show with stand 

Albany Show Regional show with stand 

Wagin Woolarama Regional show with stand 

Narrogin Emergency Services Day Regional show held by DFES for local community 

 

The following table provides a summary of the events attended in the 2019-20 financial year.
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Protecting our environment

At Western Power, we recognise that 
habitat loss is one of the greatest 
threats to Western Australia’s unique 
biodiversity and we take all the steps 
we can to appropriately assess and 
put in place measures to protect and 
conserve the natural environment 
we’re working in.

Every project we take on, from building 
microgrids, putting up powerlines, laying 
underground cables or installing smart 
streetlights, has their own unique challenges. 
A key part of our assessments when undertaking 
these works is the impact on the environment.

To minimise our impact, we often need to come 
up with innovative approaches to get the job 
done and protect the natural habitat.

Red Hill Quarry

As part of an expansion at Red Hill Quarry, we 
were commissioned to move a 2.1km 132kV 
transmission line and build the biggest tower 
foundation we’ve ever constructed to support 
three transmission towers.

As the area is in a conservation estate, we sought 
appropriate environmental and heritage approvals 
and put in place management plans to ensure 
environmental and indigenous heritage values 
were communicated and protected. This included 
protecting the Nuytsia floribunda (Christmas 
tree) species by redesigning an access road 
and avoiding contact with the owl stone – a 
mythological ochre site – by changing our 
foundation points.

We also implemented an environmental 
management plan to specifically protect a large 
population of endangered black cockatoos which 
breed in the area. This involved realigning works 
to avoid known nesting trees, minimising clearing 
works and engaging a fauna specialist.

Additionally, dieback control measures were 
put in place, as this disease is known as the 
ecological bulldozer, including mapping to identify 
areas of dieback and control any spread during 
the work. We used a hygiene management plan 
and stopped work during rain to minimise the risk 
of spreading dieback.

Building a safe haven for precious birdlife

With a bit of innovative thinking, the team at 
Jurien Bay depot came up with a way to create 
a safer home for a pair of local ospreys nesting 
at Green Head, using decommissioned network 
poles, some scrap metal and seaweed. With 
the help of the local shire and community, a 
new `nursery’ for the birds was constructed at 
Morphett Park.

While it won’t completely eliminate ospreys from 
gravitating to the real power poles, it has made a 
difference by providing the birds with an inviting 
option, and hopefully helping to save our native 
birdlife from the perils of nesting on top of a pole.

Safely relocating birds and their nests is part of 
our standard measures to protect flora and fauna. 
As well as relocation and building alternative 
nests like at Green Head, we’ve also installed 
bird diverters or spikes, and ensure live wires are 
insulated to reduce the chance of injury to the 
birds, and from impacting power supplies.
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The bee’s knees

Conserving the environment’s precious 
pollinators was helped with a new procedure 
introduced in 2019-20 to relocate bees found on 
our infrastructure rather than euthanise.

Beehives are often found in green domes, 
attached to poles, or located in substations all of 
which pose a risk to electricity supply, the safety 
of officers when maintaining the network and the 
bees themselves. 

The new procedure means bee removal 
contractors can either collect the bees, or if this 
is not possible, use proven methods/techniques 
and best endeavours to encourage as many 
bees as possible to leave the hive.

Collaborative conservation for western 
ringtail possums

A new proactive approach to help conserve 
western ringtail possums saw our crews install 
possum guards on Western Power’s overhead 
network in the south-west of WA.

Western ringtail possums are known to use the 
overhead power network to move from one 
habitat to another. This sometimes leads to 
contact with live lines and unfortunately possum 
death, as well as power outages.

To minimise these risks, we worked with the City 
of Busselton and the Department of Biodiversity, 
Conservation and Attractions on a joint initiative 
to safeguard possums and the network by 
installing fauna protection devices in areas of 
known possum habitat.

The possum guards were not only cost effective 
and easy to instal, but extremely effective in 
minimising possum interactions with the network, 
benefitting the possum population, residents and 
Western Power.

Analysing the potential environmental impact of 
our work and taking measures to minimise it is 
a key aim. WA has unique natural environments 
and as part of the WA community, we do what 
we can to help ensure its preservation.

We now actively conserve bees by relocating those that 
are found on our infrastructure rather than euthanise.

Our crews have installed possum guards on parts 
of the overhead network to conserve the threatened 
western ringtailed possum species.
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Climate change

Western Power acknowledges 
the impacts of climate change 
and the associated challenges of 
decarbonising our environment and 
our economy. 

The 2019-20 bushfire season highlighted 
the need to consider the potential impact of 
environmental events on our asset base.

Our strong governance framework provides 
a lens through which the impacts of climate 
change are considered, and these processes 
are embedded within our decision making. 
Our people are accountable for managing and 
understanding risks at every level in the business, 
and these, and actions taken to mitigate risks, are 
recorded in registers.

Our Board also regularly reviews corporate 
risks and adjusts corporate risk statements 
to guide the business. These actions inform 
decisions about asset lifecycles, potential 
impacts from environmental factors and identify 
areas for improvements. 

A changing climate impacts the environmental 
stressors that our infrastructure is subjected to 
and must withstand, as such it is important to 
understand the impacts on the network from 
floods, storms, heatwaves or cold snaps. 

We’re doing more to understand these and how 
we respond. These impacts include:

• increased operating temperatures or 
operating at excessivily low temperatures

• flooding and soil erosion

• increased risks from asset fire – for example 
increasing frequency of extreme fire risk days 
and changing weather patterns potentially 
increasing ‘fuel’ (scrub, grass, etc.) availability

• reduced safe windows for asset maintenance, 
for example with an increasing number of 
days above 30 degrees Celsius or high/
extreme weather days where we will not 
undertake routine maintenance

• increased storm damage due to increased 
frequency and severity of weather events

• changes in customer energy consumption 
behaviour leading to increased uncertainty in 
forecasting demand and difficulty in planning 
for future network requirements

• increased demand for energy and potential 
for over-utilisation of the networks as hot 
days become more frequent and the need for 
cooling increases.

We’re increasingly measuring the impact of climate change on our infrastructure and adapting operations where we 
can to minimise impacts.
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We know that changing weather patterns impact 
the grid and this has a direct impact on our 
planning activities. Prior to every bushfire season 
we carry out extensive preparatory works, such 
as clearing trees and bushes, replacing poles and 
maintaining overhead lines and insulators.

We also alter the operation of the network in 
bushfire prone areas to minimise the risk of fire 
being caused by a spark on the network. 

With increasing temperatures it’s important we 
continue our work as safely as possible. Our 
crews work closely with the Department of Fire 
and Emergency Services and local government 
authorities during extreme fire risk days or 
during vehicle movement bans to ensure work is 
carried out as safely as possible and to minimise 
potential risks from planned works. High risk 
activities such as switching are delayed until 
weather conditions change to allow work to 
take place. Work involving the use of an ignition 
source is also avoided or undertaken on the back 
of trucks with appropriate safety equipment if 
it’s necessary to minimise potential for sparks to 
create fires. 

To help with preparation and other asset 
management tasks, we recently deployed Light 
Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) technology to 
conduct an airborne survey that provides a 
detailed view of the physical network. This data is 
then used to help manage vegetation around the 
asset, decreasing the risk of damage from falling 

branches and minimising the potential to ignite 
fires if infrastructure is damaged.

We’re also using advanced computer models to 
understand the risk that climate change poses 
to our assets. The uptake of renewables and the 
changing weather patterns are altering the way 
people consume energy. Our Grid Transformation 
Engine provides detailed modelling of changes 
to sea level and population movements to help 
understand how our assets may be impacted. 
This information is then considered as part of our 
Asset Management Strategy to help guide our 
investment decisions.

With pockets of our network coming to the end 
of their useful life, we’re enhancing our network 
by replacing poles and wires with innovative, 
modern and more efficient solutions such as 
SPS, microgrids in Perenjori and Kalbarri, and 
community batteries. Our unique position in 
the network allows us to lead the way in testing 
new solutions that help us to adapt and mitigate 
impacts posed by climate change.

For towns at the end of long feeder lines the risk 
of power interruptions due to weather events is a 
real risk. Our trial of a battery backup in the mid-
west regional town of Perenjori has demonstrated 
the benefit that this solution can provide. This 
1MW battery was commissioned in late 2018 and 
decreased the number of outages by 50 per cent 
with the length of outages reduced by 55 per cent. 

Connecting solar and wind is part of our drive to help decarbonise the grid where we can.
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Insights from this trial are helping us to determine 
how we can deploy network batteries effectively 
in other communities. 

The ability to isolate sections of network following 
outages allows us to keep customers connected 
for longer. By removing ageing infrastructure or 
isolated sections of the network and replacing 
these with innovative solutions, such as the 
Kalbarri microgrid that is due to be operational 
in 2021, we’re helping decrease the risks posed 
by the environment while also helping to maintain 
system stability and security. These new and 
innovative technical solutions have changed the 
way we think about operating the grid. 

We’re also responding to the challenge of 
greenhouse gas mitigation. We’re currently 
adding community batteries that help customers 
realise the full potential of renewables with the 
benefit of helping to improve stability of the grid 
and extending the life of our assets. In a first for 
Australia, since 2018 we’ve installed 13 community 
batteries. The batteries help to smooth out 
consumption, improving the stability of the network 
by maintaining voltages, which in turn supports 
more renewables being added to the grid.

The way power is generated is also changing 
and we’re leading this shift. Our GIA solution 
is an important step in decarbonising the 
grid by allowing more large-scale renewable 
generation onto the network. The GIA solution 
was created in consultation with the Australian 
Energy Market Operator and the Public Utilities 
Office (now Energy Policy WA), to help progress 
connections to the grid that would have been 
unviable under the current unconstrained 
network access arrangement. Through the GIA 
solution we’re facilitating the connection of more 
than 900MW of renewable energy. 

Today one in three households connected to our 
network has solar and on any given day up to 40 
per cent of electricity on the grid is coming from 
renewables. This trend isn’t showing any signs 
of slowing down. This is why we’re supporting 
the State Government’s Energy Transformation 
Strategy to identify the right policy, regulation 
and investments to allow continuing update of 
renewables and other technologies.

Since 2008-09 Western Power has been required 
to report on our emissions under the National 
Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Scheme. 
The scheme requires disclosure of Scope 
1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions, 
energy production and energy consumption. 
Scope 1 emissions are those emissions directly 
produced by Western Power while Scope 2 
emissions are indirect emissions such as from 
power that is consumed by the business. Since 
reporting commenced, we have decreased our 
greenhouse gas emissions from approximately 
980kt CO2-e to approximately 700kt CO2-e - a 
decrease of approximately 28 per cent. This has 
been driven by a decrease in carbon intensity of 
network connected generators and a reduction in 
losses from our network.

We understand that ongoing dialogue and 
collaboration with the community about impacts 
is essential. It’s important we continue to refine 
our understanding of our emissions. To this end, 
we intend to undertake more detailed reporting 
on our interactions with climate change as part of 
our 2021 Annual Report.
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Western Power’s performance is tracked against the key performance indicators detailed in the 
Western Power Statement of Corporate Intent 2019/20. The following table provides a summary of 
Western Power’s performance for Financial Year 2019-20.

 

Indicator description
2019/20
ACTUAL

2019/20 
TARGET

S
a

fe

Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate (T1IFR)1 4.4 ≤ 2.7

Public impact 0.3 ≤ 0.4

Reportable environmental incidents 0.5 ≤ 0.4

R
el

ia
b

le
 Service standards met 17 19

Customer supply availability 99.90% ≥ 99.93%

Net promoter score2 9 ≥ -5

Effi
ci

en
ct

Capital expenditure3 $835.1M ≤ $849.7M

Dividend to Government4 $80.5M ≥ $277M

Employee engagement 85 ≥ 75%

Notes:

1 Calculated as a rolling 12-month average. Please refer to WP’s safety performance on page 10 of the 
annual report.

2 Subsequent to year end, a new methodology has been implemented that gives an actual of 28 – a 
new target needs to be set to align with this new methodology

3 Capital expenditure excludes Gifted Assets

4 In accordance with Ministerial letter communicating the deferral of Government Trading Enterprise 
dividends, Western Power has deferred $215.6M of its interim dividend to July 2020. Please refer to 
Note 25 Dividends in the Financial Statement for further details. 

Performance against statement of corporate intent 
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The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) present 
this report in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 6 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act).

Western Power’s directors 
The below persons were directors of Western Power as at the date of this report:

Name Duration

Colin Beckett AO (Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Greg Martin (Deputy Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Kathryn Barrie From 28/05/2019

Denise Goldsworthy AO From 01/01/2018

Peter Iancov From 29/04/2015

Eva Skira AM From 22/11/2017

 

Directors who retired during the current reporting year 

• Guy Chalkley retired as managing director on 4 February 2020 (appointed as managing director in 
May 2019)

• Vicki Krause retired as director on 31 December 2019 (appointed as a director in October 2015)

Directors’ report
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Information on directors
Legend 
FRAC = Finance, Risk and Audit Committee            SHEPC = Safety, Health, Environment and People Committee

Directors’ report (continued)

Director Profile Committee 
responsibilities

Colin Beckett AO 
 
Board Chair 
Non-executive director

MA (Cantab) 

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 28/04/2021. 

Experience and expertise: Mr Beckett retired from a 40 year career in oil and gas in 2014. Prior 
to his retirement he was an executive with Chevron Australia in Perth with responsibility for the 
Gorgon LNG and Domestic Gas Project.

In recent years, Mr Beckett has previously held the following non-executive positions:

• Chair of Perth Airport Pty Ltd

• Chancellor of Curtin University

Mr Beckett has a Master of Arts in Engineering from Cambridge University. He is a graduate 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Current directorship: Deputy Chair and non‐executive director of Beach Energy Pty Ltd.

SHEPC member

Greg Martin 
 
Deputy Board Chair 
Non-executive director

B.Ec 
LLB 
FAIM 
MAICD

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 28/04/2021.

Experience and expertise: Mr Martin has nearly 40 years’ experience in the energy, utility and 
infrastructure sectors, having spent 25 years with the Australian Gas Light Company Limited (AGL), 
including five years as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. After leaving AGL, Mr Martin 
was the Chief Executive Officer of the infrastructure division of Challenger Financial Services Group 
and, subsequently, Managing Director of Murchison Metals Limited.

Mr Martin is currently appointed as a partner of FutureNow Ventures.

Current directorships:

• Chair of Iluka Resources Limited

• Non‐executive director of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited.

FRAC Chair

Kathryn Barrie 
Non-executive director

B.Bus

Appointed with effect from 28/05/2019, current term expires on 28/05/2022.

Experience and expertise: Ms Barrie has almost 19 years of experience across the energy and 
education sectors in the Western Australian State Government. 

Ms Barrie has over 13 years of energy industry experience gained through roles with the State 
Government’s Energy Policy WA (formerly the Public Utilities Office) and the former Office of 
Energy, with particular focus on energy market regulation, financial analysis and implementing 
major energy reforms.

Prior to joining State Government, Ms Barrie spent 13 years in the private sector, primarily working 
in management consulting firms, gaining a broad range of experience including in developing 
performance reporting frameworks for companies in the energy and insurance sectors.

Ms Barrie holds a bachelor’s degree in business, with majors in finance and accounting.

Current directorship: Not currently a director of any other entity.

SHEPC member
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Directors’ report (continued)

Director Profile Committee 
responsibilities

Denise Goldsworthy AO 
Non-executive director

B.Met (Hons1) 
FAIM 
FTSE 
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/01/2018, current term expires on 28/05/2022.

Experience and expertise: Ms Goldsworthy is an experienced non-executive director and 
advisor on research, technology and innovation. Ms Goldsworthy has senior executive experience 
in manufacturing (steel), infrastructure, mining (iron ore, industrial minerals) and technology/
innovation sectors.

Ms Goldsworthy is the Managing Director and Owner of Alternate Futures - established specifically 
to work at the interface between Australia’s research organisations, tech-start-ups and industry.

Ms Goldsworthy was named the 2010 Telstra Australian Business Woman of the Year, is a member of 
Chief Executive Women and was inducted into the Western Australian Women’s Hall of Fame in 2011.

Current directorships:

• Chair of:

 − ChemCentre

 − Gasgoyne Gateway Ltd

 − the Trustees of the Navy Clearance Diver Trust

• Non‐executive director of:

 − Export Finance Australia

 − Leichardt Industrials Pty Ltd

• Member of:

 − Cooperative Research Centres Advisory Committee

 − Curtin University Commercialisation Advisory Board

 − Edith Cowan University Governing Council

 − WA Defence Science Centre Advisory Board.

SHEPC Chair

Peter Iancov 
Non-executive director

B.E (Elec)
FIEAust
FAIM
FAIB
SMIEE
MAICD

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 31/10/2020.

Experience and expertise: Mr Iancov is a professional engineer with more than 28 years of 
expertise gained in critical energy infrastructure including electricity transmission and distribution, 
mining, commercial construction, contracting and defence sectors, where he worked as a general 
manager, chief executive officer, director and advisor.

In his current and previous executive roles, Mr Iancov has been instrumental in securing and 
delivering major projects including electrical and gas generation, transmission and distribution 
networks, non-process infrastructure and commercial assets. He has a strong background in the 
successful delivery of multidisciplinary programs, commercial and contractual risk, governance, 
systems development and financial management.

Mr Iancov was appointed Managing Director of Zinfra Pty Ltd in March 2019.

Current directorships: Non-executive director of:

 − Australian Naval Infrastructure Pty Ltd

 − Chronos Advisory Pty Ltd.

FRAC member

Eva Skira AM 
Non-executive director

BA (Hons)
MBA
SF Fin
FAICD
FAIM
FCIS
FGIA

Appointed with effect from 22/11/2017, current term expires on 31/10/2020.

Experience and expertise: Ms Skira has a background in roles across banking, financial 
markets and stockbroking, along with strategic management consulting. Ms Skira also has more 
than 25 years’ experience as a non-executive director.

Ms Skira’s extensive previous board experience with commercial and government boards includes 
roles as Chair of the Water Corporation, Westscheme (the largest superannuation fund in Western 
Australia) and Forest Products Commission.

Current directorships:

• Chair of the Trustees of St John of God Health Care Group

• Chair of Macmahon Holdings Limited

• Non-executive director of:

 − WA Parks Foundation

 − Association of Ministerial Public Juridic Person (PJP) Ltd

 − Western Australian Cricket Association (WACA).

FRAC member
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Directors’ attendance at meetings 
The numbers of Board and standing committee meetings held during the reporting year ended 30 June 2020, 
and each director’s attendance at those meetings, are below:

Board
Safety, Health, Environment and 

People Committee
Finance, Risk and Audit 

Committee

Attendee Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

C Beckett AO 9 9 5 5 - 3^

G Martin 9 9 - 5^ 4 4

K Barrie 9 8 4 3 - 3^

D Goldsworthy AO 9 9 5 5 - 4^

P Iancov 9 9 - 4^ 4 4

E Skira AM 9 9 - 5^ 4 4

G Chalkley 4 4 - 2^ - 3^

V Krause 3 3 2 2 - 1̂

^ The director was not a member of the relevant committee, but attended as an invitee

Company Secretary (as at 30 June 2020)
Mr Sam Barbaro was Western Power’s General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance 
until he took on the position of Western Power’s Executive Manager Asset Operations in May 2020.

Mr Andrew Cook was subsequently appointed Western Power’s Acting General Counsel and Executive 
Manager Governance and Assurance having previously acted in the role for several months in the past year. 
The executive role includes management of the secretariat, legal, corporate compliance, enterprise risk, 
internal audit and corporate governance areas of the business. Mr Cook’s position also includes the role of 
Company Secretary of Western Power.

After completing a law and commerce degree at Murdoch University and being admitted to practice law 
in 2006, Mr Cook worked at private practice law firms with specific experience in corporate, mergers and 
acquisitions, commercial and property sectors.

Since joining Western Power in 2012, Mr Cook has been an integral part of Western Power’s Governance 
and Assurance business as Western Power’s Senior Legal Counsel.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Western Power’s principal activities
The principal continuing functions of Western Power 
are to:

•  manage, plan, develop, expand, enhance, 
improve and reinforce the electricity transmission 
and distribution networks known as the South 
West Interconnected Network (SWIN)

• provide and improve electricity transmission and 
distribution services

•  provide access to services of network 
infrastructure facilities as required and authorised 
by Part 8 of the Electricity Industry Act 2004 
(WA) (which relates to network access)

•  provide ancillary services.

In performing its functions, Western Power must act 
in accordance with prudent commercial principles 
and endeavour to make a profit consistent with 
maximising its long-term value.

There have been no significant changes in the 
nature of Western Power’s principal activities during 
the reporting year ended 30 June 2020.

Review of operations
To avoid duplication of content, please refer to the 
front section within this annual report, including the 
‘Chief Executive Officer’s message’, for information 
on the operations and financial position of Western 
Power, and its business strategies.

Western Power’s operating results 
For the reporting year ended 30 June 2020:

• Western Power achieved a net profit after 
income tax equivalent of $391 million (30 June 
2019: $366 million)

• Western Power’s net cash flows before 
borrowings were negative $138 million (30 June 
2019: $85 million deficit). This cash deficit was 
largely financed by $134 million in borrowings 
(30 June 2019: cash deficit was largely financed 
by borrowings of $83 million).

Dividends
Details of the dividends Western Power paid to the Western Australian State Government during the reporting 
years presented, are below:

2019/20 2018/19

Dividends paid $M Payment date $M Payment date

Final dividend 74 17/12/2019 93 18/12/2018

Special dividend 6 17/12/2019 5 18/12/2018

Interim dividend - - 200 27/06/2019

Total dividends paid 80 298

Directors’ report (continued)
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Directors’ report (continued)

Dividends not recognised at the end of the 
reporting year

2019/20 interim dividend

On 3 July 2020, the Minister for Energy accepted 
with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western 
Australia, the directors’ June 2020 recommendation 
for a 2019/20 interim dividend of $216 million. Western 
Power paid this dividend on 10 July 2020.

Final 2019/20 dividend

Since the end of the 30 June 2020 reporting year the 
directors have resolved to recommend, subject to the 
approval of the Minister for Energy, a dividend of $300 
million for the year ended 30 June 2020, being: 

• a final dividend of $293 million in line with Western 
Power’s current dividend policy (75 per cent of net 
profit after income tax equivalent); plus

• a special dividend of $7 million for the sale of land 
surplus to requirements.

For more details refer to note 25 ‘dividends’ in the 
financial statements of this financial report.

Matters subsequent to the end of the 
reporting year
There are no matters or circumstances that have 
arisen since 30 June 2020 and the date of this report 
that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect 
significantly the operations of Western Power, the 
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 
Western Power in subsequent reporting years.

Current and likely developments and 
their expected results of operations
Current and likely developments in Western 
Power’s operations and their expected results are 
set out below.

Energy Transformation Strategy
Western Power is a key proponent of the Energy 
Transformation Strategy (Strategy) - being the State 
Government’s work program to ensure delivery of 
safe, secure, reliable, sustainable and affordable 
electricity to Western Australians. 

In support of this, Western Power continues to work 
closely with the Energy Transformation Taskforce 
established to oversee delivery of the Strategy, and 
the Energy Transformation Implementation Unit - a 
dedicated unit within Energy Policy WA.

The Strategy, as announced by the Minister for 
Energy in March 2019 aims to respond to the energy 
transformation underway and to plan for the future 
of the Western Australian power system. It is to be 
delivered under three work streams:

1. Whole of system planning: The ‘Whole of system 
plan for the South West’ due later this year will 
identify the best options for investment in the 
Western Australian power system. With a focus 
on maintaining system security and reliability at 
the lowest sustainable cost, the plan will assist in 
the transition to a lower-emissions power system 
and guide efficient power system investment.

The options in the plan are expected to consider 
opportunities for Western Power to introduce 
new technologies into the grid including efficient 
integration of more renewable generation 
rather than depending solely on the traditional 
centralised network. 

2. Foundation regulatory frameworks: This will see 
significant changes to Western Power, including 
the introduction of the Security Constrained 
Economic Dispatch market in October 2022. This 
market will manage generation dispatch in a way 
to minimise the total cost of wholesale energy and 
help connect new renewable generation to the 
grid on a constrained access basis. 

The modernisation of the framework is expected 
to help improve how Western Power is regulated 
and the standards to which Western Power and 
market participants must compete. To support 
this, technical rules will require review - including 
for both existing and newer technology types 
and connections.

3. Distributed energy resources (DER): this is 
explained in more detail in the next section of 
these likely developments - including details of the 
State Government’s new DER roadmap.
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The outcomes of the State Government’s Energy 
Transformation Strategy will influence how Western 
Power re-shapes the business to support the 
changing energy mix, evolve grid solutions, connect 
customers, and how customers interact with the grid. 
It will also influence Western Power’s fifth access 
arrangement (AA5) regulatory submission.

Distributed Energy Resources
The sustained rise of distributed energy resources 
(DER) - including roof-top solar systems, battery 
storage, electric vehicles and microgrids - is 
fundamentally changing the energy value chain 
and driving increasingly complex consumption and 
production patterns. This continues to challenge the 
historical approach of delivering electricity one-way 
across a centralised network.

The integration of DER into Western Power’s 
traditional network presents both opportunities and 
challenges. The opportunity is to leverage these 
small-scale devices to:

•  improve the safety and reliability of existing 
network services; and

•  provide new products, solutions and choices to 
customers and the energy market.

These opportunities are tempered by technical 
network issues and barriers, which if not effectively 
coordinated could exacerbate voltage management 
and system security risks, requiring intervention.

To create the opportunities and address these 
challenges, the State Government released a DER 
roadmap in April 2020. This roadmap is part of 
Western Power’s plan to future-proof the network 
so as to continue to seamlessly connect homes, 
businesses and essential community infrastructure 
to an increasingly dynamic energy mix. The roadmap 
will help Western Power support high levels of DER 
on the network ensuring safe, secure and affordable 
electricity supply now and in the future. 

Western Power is a key supporter of the DER 
roadmap, and continues to work with the State 
Government and other energy partners to implement.

Decarbonisation
An important trend in the energy system is 
electrification - being the increasing replacement 
of fossil fuels, such as natural gas and petrol, with 
electricity. Although most discussions on climate 
change focus on transitioning existing generation 
fleets to low emission technologies, it is important 
to note electricity represents less than 20 per cent 
of final energy used, with the remaining 80 per cent 
fossil and bioenergy hydrocarbons.

Achievement of Government climate change controls 
is likely to require material emission reductions 
from other sectors in the economy as they 
transition from fossil and bioenergy hydrocarbons. 
The decarbonisation of these sectors through 
electrification has the potential to increase demand for 
Western Power’s products and services.

To capture the opportunities presented by 
decarbonisation, Western Power is:

•  supporting development of the State 
Government’s electric vehicle strategy to transition 
the transport sector to a low emissions future

•  leveraging business capabilities to develop 
products and services that support the 
electrification of industrial and processing sectors.

Public safety
Western Power is required to maintain and replace 
network assets in a way that acceptably delivers 
to the community a safe, reliable and affordable 
connection to energy.

All electrical networks in Australia including the 
SWIN, have an inherent level of risk in operation. This 
risk arises from environmental and weather related 
factors, which are outside of the operator’s control, 
as well as from risks that are identified as part of the 
operation’s strategies.
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Western Power manages safety risks associated 
with the network in accordance with its asset 
management system. This system has been 
independently:

•  assessed as compliant with the requirements of 
Australian Standard (AS) 5577 Electricity network 
safety management systems

•  certified against the International Organisation 
for Standardisation (ISO) 55001: 2014 Asset 
management - management systems.

Western Power’s asset management system ensures 
continued management of the network in an effective 
and sustainable manner considering the risk posed.

Asset utilisation
A key strategic challenge for Western Power is the 
efficient use of existing assets. This is especially 
evident considering Western Power’s network was 
largely built prior to 1965, with a high proportion of 
assets in the second half of their expected life.

In general, older networks pose a greater risk, with 
the frequency and severity of failures expected to 
increase as assets age. Western Power’s annual 
‘state of the infrastructure’ report as published on 
the website, details the current state and level of 
performance of the network, and highlights the 
associated risks.

The combination of Western Power’s ageing assets 
and rise of distributed energy resources presents a 
challenging and complex investment environment. To 
assist in this, Western Power is:

•  evolving the current centralised network into a 
modular grid by investing in stand-alone power 
systems, battery storage devices and microgrids

•  continuing to:

 - invest in the network to achieve safety and 
reliability standards whilst minimising stranded 
assets; and

 - mature the Network Risk Management Tool 
(NRMT) seen as best practice within the 
industry for asset management

• increasing planning capability with transition to 
scenario-based modelling and development of an 
integrated grid transformation forecasting tool

• supporting:

 - customer choice through modernised product 
suites such as community powerbanks; and

 - the introduction of constrained access to 
increase network utilisations.

Cyber security
Western Power like all businesses, must ensure 
it invests in appropriate levels of cyber security 
infrastructure to protect operations from on-going and 
increasing levels of threats. This is heightened with the 
increase in personnel working from home due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

Western Power too, being a critical infrastructure 
provider to Western Australia and key part of 
Australia’s overall electricity supply, must ensure 
that its core service of delivering safe, reliable and 
affordable energy to the community, is protected from 
interference from individuals and organised attackers 
who may have a varied range of motivations.

Western Power is responding to these requirements 
by making targeted investments to protect itself from 
immediate threats as they arise, whilst executing a 
long-term program to continuously lift the maturity of 
its cyber security defence capabilities. The scope of 
this uplift is a prioritised, risk driven program providing 
a broad and thorough treatment of all cyber security 
domains based on the Australian Energy Sector 
Cyber Security Framework.

While these efforts are managed from within Western 
Power, there is a high level of coordination with other 
industry participants and both state and federal 
government bodies.
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Environmental, heritage and planning 
performance
Western Power’s activities are subject to State and 
Commonwealth environmental legislation, with some 
locations and projects covered by specific approval 
conditions, and environmental licences and permits 
issued by the State.

Western Power holds a purpose permit until 2021 
to allow self‐assessment for the clearing of native 
vegetation under certain circumstances. During 
2019/20, 25 internal clearing permits were issued, 
with none classified as having a significant impact 
on biodiversity values. An estimated total of 0.52 
hectares of native vegetation was cleared during the 
year under 17 separate internal clearing permits.

Western Power holds a licence for the bulk storage 
of oil at Kewdale Depot. The annual audit of the 
site identified two medium risk findings, which 
were reported to the Department of Water and 
Environmental Regulation (DWER). No impact to 
the environment was identified from the audit, 
no significant incidents occurred at this site and 
no complaints were received during the 2019/20 
financial year.

Western Power holds six dangerous goods licences 
for the storage of sulfur hexafluoride (an insulating 
gas used in electrical equipment), liquid petroleum 
gas and transformer oil. There were no incidents 
reportable to the Department of Mines, Industry 
Regulation and Safety during the year.

Western Power assets operate under a number 
of approvals issued under the Environmental 
Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997 (WA) due to 
noise from transformers and their cooling fans. 
During 2019/20, boundary walls were installed at the 
Arkana and Byford substations to mitigate the noise 
levels received by nearby residents. Additionally, 
transformer fans were replaced at Arkana, Byford 
and the Kalamunda substation to mitigate this 
intermittent noise source.

The requested amendment of the Environmental 
Protection (Western Power Transmission Substation 
Noise Emissions) Approval 2005, referred to 
in Western Power’s 2018/19 ‘environmental 
performance’ report is currently under consideration 
by the Minister for Environment. That submission 
contained a new approach to noise mitigation as well 
as a deferral request mitigation for two substations.

Western Power is required to report significant 
environmental incidents to its regulators as soon 
as practicable. During the 2019/20 financial year 
Western Power reported 15 environmental incidents, 
all of which were oil leaks from transformers - 
seven were caused by third parties and not within 
the control of Western Power. Remediation and 
rehabilitation of each of the sites is undertaken in 
liaison with environmental regulators. There was no 
significant environmental impact and work planning 
processes were amended to prevent recurrence.

In agreement with the DWER, Western Power 
prepares a six‐monthly report of any spills or leaks 
in Underground Water Pollution Control Areas 
(UWPCAs), which are in place to protect Perth’s 
drinking water. The two submissions from the 
2019/20 year described a total of 16 oil leaks within 
UWPCAs, the majority of which were minor. 

Western Power reported 12 suspected or known 
contaminated sites to the DWER during the year. 
Additionally, nine site investigations and 13 soil 
remediation projects were initiated - the same 
number as last year.

A larger investigation into the historic use of fluid‐
filled transmission cables has been deferred - due 
to the COVID-19 travel restrictions and being unable 
to utilise interstate resources. The investigation is 
planned to recommence in mid to late 2020.

Western Power has not been notified by the Western 
Australian Planning Commission or any other 
relevant planning bodies of any non‐compliance, nor 
been required to submit notification to the Ministers 
for Energy or Planning in respect of works, pursuant 
to section 60 of the Act.
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Following extensive consultation with the 
Department of Premier and Cabinet, Department of 
Planning, Lands and Heritage and the South West 
Aboriginal Land and Sea Council, in November 2019 
Western Power signed its first Alternative Heritage 
Agreements (NAHAs). The NAHAs provide a clear 
and consistent approach to meeting Western 
Power’s legal obligations relating to Aboriginal 
heritage identification, assessment and management.

As part of the NAHA, Western Power submitted 
three activity notices with one activity notice 
response requiring an aboriginal heritage survey.

Indemnity and insurance of directors 
and officers
Western Power has entered into a deed of indemnity 
with each director. The respective deeds provide that:

• Western Power indemnifies the director against 
all liabilities and costs relating to proceedings 
that are anticipated, threatened or commenced 
against the director in relation to matters arising 
in the course of the director acting in connection 
with the affairs of Western Power, or otherwise 
concerning the director holding office as a director 
of Western Power

• the indemnity does not extend to claims against 
the director by Western Power or a subsidiary, 
or to any liability or claim arising out of conduct 
involving a criminal act, dishonesty or lack of 
good faith.

Western Power holds a directors’ and officers’ liability 
insurance policy. Subject to the applicable terms 
and conditions, the policy will pay to or on behalf 
of an insured person, or reimburse Western Power 
for any loss paid to an insured person, in relation 
to a claim or claims made against them jointly or 
severally during the period of insurance by reason 
of any wrongful act (as defined by the policy) in their 
capacity as a director or officer of Western Power.

At the date of this report no successful claims 
have been made against the directors and officers’ 
component of the policy.

Western Power has not entered into a deed of 
indemnity with, and does not hold an insurance 
policy for, the external auditor.

Significant regulatory changes
Electricity Industry Amendment Bill 2019 (WA)
In April 2020, the Western Australian State Parliament 
passed the Electricity Industry Amendment Bill 2019 
(WA) (Bill). This marked a significant milestone for 
Western Power.

The Bill grants regulatory approval for Western Power 
to offer new energy products, solutions and choices 
to the community outside those of the current 
centralised network - specifically stand-alone power 
systems (SPS) and energy storage devices.

SPS are proving to be a more reliable, renewable and 
economic alternative to traditional poles and wires - 
particularly in low-population density rural and remote 
areas. In support of this, and the successful pilot trial 
in the Great Southern region, SPS are expected to 
be a key tool in Western Power’s future autonomous 
network - being grid connection is not required.

Energy storage devices such as batteries, are 
increasingly important in managing the influx of roof-
top solar panels on the network - being they can 
store excess energy throughout the day for release 
when required to stabilise the electricity system.  
Community batteries are currently being trialled by 
Western Power as part of the PowerBank project 
- whereby a large-scale battery is placed within a 
neighbourhood providing residents a virtual storage 
option for excess energy generation.

The new Bill also supports future amendments to the 
Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 (WA) allowing 
cost recovery of these energy solutions though 
regulated tariffs.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Access arrangement 5
The Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 
(WA) requires Western Power to submit its next 
access arrangement to the Economic Regulation 
Authority (ERA) by the date specified in the access 
arrangement (the revisions submission date). Western 
Power’s current access arrangement (AA4) specifies 
a revisions submission date for the fifth access 
arrangement of 26 February 2021. Western Power 
sought the Minister for Energy’s approval to extend 
the submission date to 1 February 2022 to enable 
the submission to incorporate energy reforms being 
progressed as part of the State Government’s Energy 
Transformation Strategy.

The Minister for Energy has endorsed the extension 
and changes to the Electricity Networks Access 
Code 2004 (WA) have been gazetted modifying the 
submission date to 1 February 2022.

Other required legislative disclosures
Observance of Western Power’s Code of 
Conduct
Western Power’s Code of Conduct has been 
established to provide guidance on acting responsibly 
and ethically when completing tasks on behalf of 
Western Power. The Code of Conduct applies to 
all directors, executive officers and employees of 
Western Power, and to all contractors performing 
activities on behalf of Western Power. All personnel 
have access to Western Power’s Code of Conduct.

Section 33 of the Act requires the Board to report to 
the Minister for Energy on observance of the Code 
of Conduct by all Western Power personnel. This 
report is submitted at the same time as Western 
Power’s annual report.

Western Power has also established processes and 
procedures to ensure observance of the Code of 
Conduct. All Western Power personnel receive annual 
code of conduct and conflicts of interest training.

Modern Slavery Act 2018 (Cth)
In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2018 
(Cth), Western Power is required to provide an 
annual Board-approved modern slavery statement 
to the Australian Minister for Home Affairs. This 
statement is to describe the risks of modern slavery 
in Western Power’s operations and supply chains, 
and the actions taken to assess and address 
these risks including due diligence and remediation 
processes. On receipt, the statement is published 
on a public and freely accessible register. 

Western Power’s inaugural modern slavery statement 
(for the 2019/20 financial year) is due to the Australian 
Minister for Home Affairs by 31 March 2021.

State Records Act 2000 (WA)
Western Power maintains and supports quality 
record keeping practices in its day-to-day business 
activities. Records are managed in accordance 
with the State Records Act 2000 (WA) and Western 
Power’s approved record-keeping plan. Regular 
reviews of Western Power’s record-keeping systems 
and practices are conducted to ensure they remain 
efficient, effective and reflect business requirements.

Personnel, including contractors, are required to 
complete online record-keeping training prior to 
accessing Western Power’s enterprise document 
management system. Training programs are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure they reflect 
evolving business processes.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Electoral Act 1907 (WA)
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 (WA), the below expenditure (exclusive of goods 
and services tax) was incurred by Western Power during the reporting year ended 30 June 2020. The 
expenditure includes costs associated with public safety and educational campaigns, as well as customer 
mail-outs and notifications.

Category Amount ($) Recipient General nature of work

Advertising agencies 100,667 Advance Press Print production

50,052 Clockwork Print Print production

544,289 Equilibrium Interactive Website services

11,000 Multiplier Media content

175,109 Signs Ahead Signage and branding

2,171,840 Walter J Thompson Australia Public safety and education

11,439 Workhorse Advertising Photography

Sub-total 3,064,396

Market research organisations 380,446 Faster Horses Corporate reputation, campaign and brand 
strategy

314,158 Forethought Strategic initiative research

34,429 Meltwater Australia Media monitoring

Sub-total 729,033

Direct mail organisations 522,362 Fuji Xerox Business Force Customer self-reader cards, invoicing and 
notifications

Sub-total 522,362

Media advertising organisations 1,363,456 The Brand Agency Media placements

1,000 Kalbarri Town Talk Community awareness

44,275 LinkedIn Singapore Media campaign

17,589 Optimum Media Decisions Media campaign

Sub-total 1,426,320

Total expenditure 5,742,111

 
Rounding of amounts
Amounts presented in the directors’ report have been rounded off to the nearest million dollars ($M), unless 
otherwise stated.
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*

Principles used to determine the nature 
and amount of remuneration 
Western Power’s remuneration policy has been 
formulated to: 

• provide a market competitive remuneration 
framework designed to attract, retain and 
motivate a skilled workforce with the capabilities 
and skills required to effectively achieve Western 
Power’s corporate objectives

•  adopt a commercial approach to the 
management of remuneration, including the 
capacity to pay, provide a clear governance 
framework and address associated risks

•  ensure employees are appropriately 
compensated according to the value of the work 
performed, the services they provide to the 
company and their personal performance.

Non-executive directors
The Minister for Energy approves the remuneration 
of all directors. The remuneration framework for 
non-executive directors incorporates both a fixed 
remuneration and superannuation component. 

Non-executive directors do not participate in any 
variable reward or ‘at-risk’ plan. 

No remuneration is paid to any non-executive 
directors that hold a full-time office or position that 
is remunerated out of moneys appropriated by 
Parliament.

Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director 
and executives
The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer 
/ Managing Director (as relevant) is determined 
in accordance with the Act and the Salaries and 
Allowances Act 1975 (WA). 

Mr Guy Chalkley (former Chief Executive Officer) 
was appointed Managing Director in May 2019 
until 4 February 2020. No additional remuneration 
was awarded to the Managing Director for his 
appointment to the Board. No one filled the 
Managing Director position following Mr Chalkley’s 
resignation from this role.

The remuneration of the other executives is set by 
the Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director (as 
relevant) in consultation with the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director 
(as relevant) and other executive’s remuneration 
framework is based upon a total remuneration 
approach that includes base salary, superannuation 
and benefits to reflect the level of work, 
accountability and personal competency in the role. 

The Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director (as 
relevant) and executives do not participate in any 
variable reward or ‘at-risk’ plan.

Total remuneration is reviewed annually on the 
basis of government policy, competitive market 
movement and personal performance. There are no 
guaranteed remuneration increases included in any 
executive contracts.

Directors’ report - remuneration
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Directors’ report - remuneration (continued)

Details of remuneration
Non-executive and managing directors
For a list of Western Power’s directors during the reporting year ended 30 June 2020, refer to the ‘Western 
Power’s directors’ section at the front of this directors report.

The remuneration for, and duties and obligations of Western Power’s directors are determined under the Act. 
In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the nature and amount of each element of 
remuneration for the directors during the reporting years presented, are below:

Total 
remuneration 
band

Number of 
directors* Salary and fees^

Other long-term 
benefits^

Post-
employment 

superannuation 
benefits^

Termination 
benefits^ Total^

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$01 1 1 - - - - - - - - - -

$1 - $50 1 - 28 - - - 3 - - - 31 -

$51 - $100 4 5 61 59 - - 5 5 - - 66 64

$101 - $150 1 1 121 120 - - 11 11 - - 132 131

$501 - $5502 - 1 - 505 - 12 - 24 - - - 541

$751 - $8002 1 - 407 - - - 20 - 3303 - 757 -

* During the 2019/20 and 2018/19 reporting years the composition of the Board changed 

^ Where there is more than one director in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown

1  Ms Barrie is not remunerated by Western Power being a representative of the Western Australian State Government

2  Mr Chalkley was not remunerated any additional amount for the appointment of Managing Director

3  Mr Chalkley’s termination benefits are for accrued annual and long service leave entitlements, and are subject to taxation deductions required by law
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During the reporting year ended 30 June 2020, the below persons were executive officers of Western Power:

Name Position (as at 30 June 2020) 2019/20 2018/19

E Kalajzic Chief Executive Officer (from 08/05/2020) 
(was Chief Financial Officer from October 2019)

*

S Barbaro Executive Manager Asset Operations (from 25/05/2020) 
(was General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance when 
not Acting Executive Manager Asset Operations between February 2020 and mid-
May 2020)

* *

F Bishop Executive Manager Change and Innovation 
(In May 2020, this position was assessed as no longer required - effective from 
2020/21)

T Brooker Executive Manager Business and Customer Service * *

A Cook Acting General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance  
(from 25/05/2020; and between February 2020 and mid-May 2020)

D Fyfe Executive Manager Asset Operations (until 24/05/2020 when on leave until 2020/21 
departure) 
(was Acting Chief Executive Officer between February 2020 and May 2020)

* *

J Hall Chief Financial Officer (from 29/06/2020) 
(was acting from February 2019 to September 2019, and from May 2020)

P Kerr Executive Manager Growth

G Landsborough Executive Manager Asset Management (from 22/06/2020) 
(was acting from September 2019)

G Chalkley Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director (until 17/04/2020) * *

S Mc Goldrick Executive Manager Asset Management (until 13/10/2019) *

* Denotes the five highest remunerated executive officers in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act

Directors’ report - remuneration (continued)
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Executive officers
The remuneration and other terms of employment for Western Power’s executive officers are formalised 
in ongoing employment agreements. In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the 
five highest remunerated officers (being executive officers of Western Power) during the reporting years 
presented, are below.

Total 
remuneration 
band

Number of 
executive 
officers* Salary and fees^

Non-monetary 
benefits^

Other long-term 
benefits^

Post-
employment 

superannuation 
benefits^ Total^

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$301 - $350 1 - 321 - - - 9 - 17 - 347 -

$351 - $400 2 2 352 345 4 - 9 8 21 21 386 374

$401 - $450 - 1 - 385 - 13 - 10 - 21 - 429

$451 - $500 1 1 444 427 - - 10 10 21 21 475 458

* The Managing Director’s remuneration is presented in the directors’ remuneration table

^ Where there is more than one executive officer in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown

For the total remuneration to Western Power’s directors and executive officers (where key management 
personnel) refer to note 26(b) ‘related party transactions’ in the financial statements of this financial report.

Directors’ report - remuneration (continued)



44     |    Western Power Annual Report 2020

G Martin 
Deputy Board Chair

C Beckett AO 
Board Chair

This directors’ report is authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 25 August 2020.

Signed on: 26 August 2020

Directors’ report - confirmation
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Corporate governance at Western Power
The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and fostering a culture 
that values safety, ethical behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect.

Western Power’s corporate governance disclosures are published on the Western Power website at:

westernpower.com.au/about/governance/

Corporate governance disclosures
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Financial statements 
Streamlined financial statements 
Western Power’s financial statements are presented in a style which endeavours to make them user-friendly, tailored and less 
complex for the reader. In support of this, the note disclosures have been grouped to logically align with Western Power’s 
financial performance being: ‘basis of preparation’; ‘profit for the reporting years presented’; ‘operational assets and liabilities’; 
‘debt and equity’; ‘other information’. Each section sets out the accounting policies applied in preparing the relevant notes. The 
purpose of this format is to provide readers with a clearer understanding of Western Power’s financial performance.

Statement of comprehensive income  47
Statement of financial position  48
Statement of changes in equity  49
Statement of cash flows  50
Notes to the financial statements  51
Section 1: Basis of preparation  51
1. Reporting entity  51
2. Basis of accounting  51
3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements  53

Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented  54
4. Income  54
5. Expenses  56
6. Net finance costs  58
7. Income tax equivalent expense  59

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities  61
8. Financial assets and financial liabilities  61
9. Cash and cash equivalents  63
10. Trade and other receivables  64
11. Inventories  65
12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets  66
13. Right-of-use assets  70
14. Trade and other payables  71
15. Provisions  71
16. Deferred income  74
17. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  75

Section 4: Debt and equity  77
18. Financial risk management  77
19. Borrowings  84
20. Lease liabilities  85
21. Derivative financial instruments  86
22. Recognised fair value measurements  89
23. Contributed equity  90
24. Hedging reserve and retained earnings  90
25. Dividends  92

Section 5: Other information  93
26. Related party transactions  93
27. Remuneration of auditors  95
28. Contingencies  95
29. Commitments  96
30. Events occurring after the reporting date  96
31. Changes in accounting policy   97

Directors’ declaration  101
Corporate directory  102
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Financial statements (continued)
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Profit or loss
Income
 Revenue from rendering of services 4 1,835 1,764
 Other income 4 1 3
Total income 1,836 1,767

Expenses
 Materials and services (212) (185)
 Employee related expenses 5 (233) (200)
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 (364) (349)
 Other expenses 5 (203) (229)
Total expenses (1,012) (963)

Net finance costs 6 (264) (285)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 560 519
 Income tax equivalent expense 7 (169) (153)
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 366

Other comprehensive loss
Items that may be re-classified to profit or loss: 24
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (45) (97)
   Re‐classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 16 17
 Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges 9 24
Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss: 24
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss (1) -
   Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges - -
Total other comprehensive loss for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent (21) (56)

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 370 310

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020

Financial statements (continued)

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Assets
Current assets
 Cash and cash equivalents 9 28 32
 Trade and other receivables 10 258 253
 Inventories 11 83 86
Total current assets 369 371

Non-current assets
 Trade and other receivables 10 1 -
 Property, plant and equipment 12 11,212 10,758
 Intangible assets 12 167 139
 Right-of-use assets 13 25 -
Total non-current assets 11,405 10,897

Total assets 11,774 11,268

Liabilities
Current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 14 178 174
 Borrowings 19 36 13
 Lease liabilities 20 9 -
 Derivative financial instruments 21 15 42
 Current tax equivalent liabilities 22 14
 Provisions 15 88 84
 Deferred income 16 137 146
Total current liabilities 485 473

Non-current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 14 1 1
 Borrowings 19 7,507 7,351
 Lease liabilities 20 16 -
 Derivative financial instruments 21 84 69
 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 17 950 889
 Provisions 15 16 15
 Deferred income 16 25 103
Total non-current liabilities 8,599 8,428

Total liabilities 9,084 8,901

Net assets 2,690 2,367

Equity
 Contributed equity 23 1,555 1,522
 Hedging reserve 24 (119) (98)
 Retained earnings 24 1,254 943
Total equity 2,690 2,367

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial statements (continued)

Note

Contributed 
equity 

$M

Hedging 
reserve 

$M

Retained 
earnings 

$M

Total 
equity 

$M
At 1 July 2019 1,522 (98) 943 2,367

Comprehensive income or loss 24
 Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 391 391
 Other comprehensive loss, net of tax equivalent - (21) - (21)
Other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax equivalent - (21) 391 370

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 23 33 - - 33
 Dividends provided for or paid 25 - - (80) (80)
Total transactions with owners 33 - (80) (47)

At 30 June 2020 1,555 (119) 1,254 2,690

At 1 July 2018 1,411 (42) 875 2,244

Comprehensive income or loss 24
 Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 366 366
 Other comprehensive loss, net of tax equivalent - (56) - (56)
Other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax equivalent - (56) 366 310

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 23 111 - - 111
 Dividends provided for or paid 25 - - (298) (298)
Total transactions with owners 111 - (298) (187)

At 30 June 2019 1,522 (98) 943 2,367

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial statements (continued)

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Cash flows from operating activities
 Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax) 1,735 1,716
 Capital contributions from developers and customers 118 204
 Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax) (590) (552)
 Contributions to tariff equalisation fund (171) (198)
 Other income 1 3
 Income tax equivalents paid (91) (129)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 9 1,002 1,044

Cash flows from investing activities
 Payments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (832) (672)
 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 12 5
Net cash outflows from investing activities (820) (667)

Cash flows from financing activities
 Proceeds from borrowings 1,675 925
 Repayments of borrowings (1,541) (842)
 Lease principal paid (9) -
 Net finance costs paid (264) (275)
 Proceeds from contributed equity 33 111
 Distributions to equity holder (80) (298)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (186) (379)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4) (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting year 32 34

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 9 28 32

Refer to note 9(d) for details of the non-cash investing and financing activities.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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In this section
This section presents the significant accounting policies adopted by Western Power in the preparation of these financial 
statements. Where an accounting policy is specific to one note, the policy is described in the note to which it relates. All 
principal policies have been consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Section 1: Basis of preparation

1. Reporting entity

 Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated under the Electricity   
 Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act) and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and principal place of business is  
 363 Wellington Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000.

 Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the electricity network throughout  
 the majority of southern Western Australia. (For a more detailed description of Western Power’s operations and   
 principal activities refer to the ‘review of operations’ and ‘principal activities’ sections of the directors’ report within   
 this financial report).  

 These financial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were authorised for issue in 
 accordance with a resolution of the directors on 25 August 2020. The directors have the power to amend and   
 reissue the financial report.

2. Basis of accounting

 These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
 Australian accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards 
 Board (AASB) (including Australian interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4 
 was aligned and cross referenced to the relevant sections of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

 Western Power has been classified as a not-for-profit entity for the purpose of applying accounting standards, and  
 accordingly applies the not-for-profit elections available in the Australian accounting standards (where applicable).

 (a) New and ammended standards adopted

  Western Power has applied the following standards for the first time in the reporting year commencing 1 July 2019:

• AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) and AASB 1058 Income of not-for-profit 
entities (AASB 1058)

• AASB 16 Leases (AASB 16)
  The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has resulted in changes in accounting policy and affected note 
  disclosures only. There has been no impact to the comparative amounts recognised or adjustments against 
  1 July 2019 opening retained earnings.

  The adoption of AASB 16 has resulted in changes in accounting policy and affected amounts recognised in the 
  financial statements - being equal opening balance adjustments to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. 
  There has been no impact to net assets and hence no adjustment against 1 July 2019 opening retained 
  earnings. Comparative amounts have not been impacted.

  All changes in accounting policies on adoption of AASB 15, AASB 1058 and AASB 16 and their impacts to the 
  amounts recognised in the financial statements are further explained and summarised in note 31.

 (b) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

  There are no accounting standards or amendments effective after the 30 June 2020 reporting year that have been 
  identified as potentially having a material impact on Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

Notes to the financial statements

Financial statements (continued)
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 (c) Accrual accounting and historical cost convention

  These financial statements are prepared:

• on the accrual accounting basis except for cash flow information prepared on the cash accounting basis; and
• in accordance with the historical cost convention except for:

 - derivative financial instruments measured at fair value
 - certain employee benefit liabilities measured at present value, less the fair value of any defined benefit 

plan assets.

 (d) Comparatives

  Comparative amounts are for the previous reporting year from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. Where appropriate,  
  these amounts have been re-presented and re-classified to ensure comparability with the 2019/20 reporting year.

 (e) Going concern

  These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis - being Western Power has reasonable 
  grounds to believe it is able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. This is considering the 
  unused portion of the available facility agreement (refer to note 18(d)(i)) and the forecast net profit and positive 
  operating cash flows in 2020/21.

  In making this assessment, consideration has been given to the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
  on Western Power’s operating results. The current indications are the demand for, and receipts from network 
  tariff services, being the most sizable revenue source for Western Power have not been materially impacted - 
  hence there is no expectation of a significant decline in revenue. In support of this, as at 30 June 2020 there 
  were minimal applications by qualifying market participants for temporary deferral of network access payments 
  under Western Power’s ‘COVID-19 customer support scheme’.

 (f) Working capital

  As at 30 June 2020, Western Power reported a working capital deficit of $116 million (30 June 2019: $102 million   
  deficit). Current liabilities include deferred income relating to developer and customer contributions to the value of 
  $137 million (30 June 2019: $146 million) which usually do not require an outflow of cash resources. When these 
  amounts are excluded, working capital shows current assets exceeding current liabilities by $21 million (30 June   
  2019: $44 million).

  



Western Power Annual Report 2020    |    53

Financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 (g) Foreign currency translation

  Presentation and functional currency: 
  These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, being the functional currency of Western 
  Power. All financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded off to the nearest million ($M), 
  unless otherwise stated.

  Transactions and balances: 
  Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of Western Power are translated into Australian 
  dollars using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets 
  and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at closing exchange rates. 
  Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
  exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

  All foreign currency translation differences are recognised on a net basis in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss,   
  except:

• when deferred in equity for translation differences of qualifying cash flow hedges, to the extent the hedge is 
effective

• when the translation differences deferred to equity for qualifying cash flow hedges are transferred to the 
carrying value of non-financial assets.

 (h) Goods and services tax (GST)

  Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, except when the GST incurred 
  is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 
  of the asset or as part of the expense.

  Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
  recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included in other receivables or payables in the statement 
  of financial position.

  Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing 
  activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian accounting standards requires management 
 to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
 amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
 experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on Western 
 Power and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
 recognised in the reporting year in which the estimate is revised and any future reporting years affected.

 The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements, or a higher degree of 
 judgement or complexity is involved, are below and described in more detail in the related notes:

Critical accounting estimates and judgements  Note
Unbilled network tariff revenue 4(c) and 10(c)
Impaired trade receivables 10(d) and 18(c)(i)
Impairment of non-financial assets 12(g) and 13(e)
Present value of lease liabilities 13(d) and 20(d)
Present value of employee benefit liabilities 15(c)
Fair values of derivative financial instruments 22(b)
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In this section
This section presents details of Western Power’s profit results and performance by reference to the services rendered 
and operating expenses incurred.

Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented

4. Income

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Revenue

   Western Power recognises revenue when the performance obligation to which it relates is satisfied. This 
   is either at the point the service is provided - being when control of the service is transferred to the 
   customer, or over time where control of the service is progressively transferred to the customer. It is 
   measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, being the invoiced amount including 
   interest on overdue amounts, net of the amount of goods and services tax. Revenue also includes an 
   estimate for the value of unbilled network tariff services.

   Network services revenue

   Regulated tariff services 
   Western Power primarily receives revenue from the rendering of network tariff services. These services 
   largely relate to the transmission and distribution of electricity and are regulated by the Western Australian 
   Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) via an access arrangement agreement.

   Where Western Power progressively transfers control of these services to the customer - being for on-going 
   access to the network, the revenue is recognised over time. All other network tariff revenue is recognised 
   when the service is provided to the customer - being at the point the network is used. The consideration 
   invoiced for network tariff services is based on observable stand-alone prices, being mostly fixed access 
   and usage tariffs approved by the ERA and published in Western Power’s annual price list.

   For network access revenue recognised over time, the output method is used, with revenue measured at 
   the amount Western Power is entitled to invoice the customer. This is because the invoiced amount charged 
   at fixed daily access tariffs, is deemed to correspond directly with the value to the customer of Western 
   Power’s performance obligation completed to date.

   As at each reporting date, network tariff revenue and trade receivables include amounts attributable to 
   ‘unbilled network tariff revenue’. Unbilled network tariff revenue is an estimate of electricity transported 
   to customers not yet invoiced at the reporting date. It comprises read and unread (for periodical readings) 
   metered services, with the latter estimated based on projected revenue consumption at observable stand-  
   alone prices (fixed tariffs).

   

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial statements (continued)
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4. Income (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (i) Revenue (continued)

   Other services (regulated and unregulated) 
   Western Power also receives revenue from the rendering of other network services, including:

• regulated non-standard access services where the customer is willing to accept different conditions 
to the standard access contract and service standard benchmark. The tariffs for these services are 
negotiated between Western Power and the individual customers but must be set with regard to the 
regulated network tariffs.

• regulated services that can only be offered by Western Power but which are not core to the transmission 
and distribution of electricity. Where these are commonly requested services, the fees and charges are 
set in-line with a charging criteria and published on Western Power’s web-site. For other complex or non-
standard services, Western Power negotiates commercially with the individual customers.

• unregulated services contestable by other suppliers including the sales of materials. The fees and 
charges for these services are in-line with the methodology disclosed above for ‘other regulated services’.

   The revenue for other network services is recognised when the service is provided to the customer. The 
   consideration invoiced for these services is based on observable stand-alone prices, being fixed at 
   published or contracted fees and charges.        

   Developer and customer contributions

   Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the extension or augmentation of 
   electricity infrastructure to facilitate network connection. Contributions can be in the form of either cash or 
   gifted network assets. Cash contributions are charged using the methodology included in Western Power’s 
   published ‘contributions policy’ approved by the ERA as part of the access arrangement agreement.

   Cash contributions received are initially deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue at the point the 
   developers or customers are connected to the network. This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation 
   of the underlying connection contract.

   Gifted network assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are energised being in satisfaction 
   of the performance obligation to connect the developer or customer to the network, and are measured at 
   their fair value.

   The network assets resulting from contributions received or gifted are recognised as property, plant and 
   equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

   For the impact to Western Power’s revenue and contributions accounting policies on adoption of AASB 15 
   and AASB 1058 refer to notes 31(a) and 31(b) respectively.

  (ii) Other income

   Western Power receives other income from the provision of services incidental to the core activities of the 
   business. Other income is recognised when the service is provided.      
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4. Income (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

  (i) Revenue from rendering of services

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Network services revenue:
 Transmission tariff services 4(c) 343 283
 Distribution tariff services 4(c) 1,180 1,195
 Other services 75 72

1,598 1,550

Developer and customer contributions 237 214
Total revenue from rendering of services 1,835 1,764

  (ii) Other income

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Rent 1 1
Insurance recoveries - 2

1 3

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled network tariff revenue

  For the year ended 30 June 2020, transmission and distribution network tariff revenue included $150 million for 
  unbilled services (30 June 2019: $144 million). The revenue from these services is measured using a projection 
  model applying complex estimation methodologies and algorithms based on assumptions and inputs such 
  as customer billing profiles, historical and budget data, and seasonal, growth and emerging technology factors. 
  This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted in previous reporting years (refer to note 
  4(a) for further details).

  Western Power consider it highly probable a significant reversal of this estimate will not be required. This is 
  due to on-going quantitative and qualitative processes in place to support robust and sound measurement, 
  including regular reasonableness and deviation monitoring, and periodical independent reviews of the revenue 
  projection model.       

5. Expenses

 (a) Employee related expenses

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits (188) (165)
Termination benefits (2) (2)
Superannuation (43) (33)

(233) (200)

  Refer to note 26(b) for details of total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel.  

  For the year ended 30 June 2020, employee related expenses included a provisional amount of $18 million for 
  prior years’ unintentional underpayments to current and former employees. These were identified and 
  self-reported by Western Power to the Fair Work Ombudsman in August 2019, and have been the subject of a 
  comprehensive review.

  Western Power continues to liaise with the Fair Work Ombudsman on this issue, as well as with other key 
  stakeholders including the Minister for Energy, Australian Services Union and impacted employees.   
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5. Expenses (continued)

 (b) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Depreciation expense - property, plant and equipment:
 Buildings (5) (5)
 Plant and equipment (334) (322)
 Capitalised depreciation 5(b)(i) 21 11

(318) (316)

Amortisation expense - intangible assets:
 Computer software (33) (31)
 Intellectual property (4) (2)

(37) (33)

Depreciation expense - right-of-use assets:
 Fleet (8) -
 Other equipment (1) -

(9) -

Total depreciation and amortisation expense (364) (349)

  Refer to notes 12(a)(ii), 12(b)(ii) and 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and 
  estimated useful lives applied.

  (i) Capitalised depreciation

   Capitalised depreciation represents charges for fleet assets used in the course of construction.

 (c) Other expenses

  (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Tariff equalisation contribution 29(c) (171) (198)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15) (12)
Insurance (9) (10)
Lease costs (1) (8)
Impairment of trade receivables 18(c)(i) (1) (1)
Other (6) -

(203) (229)

Refer to note 27 for details on the remuneration of auditors.

  (ii) Accounting policy: lease costs

   The below expenses are recognised as ‘lease costs’ in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period 
   of the lease:

• expenses relating to short-term leases
• expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
• other expenses not captured as lease liabilities under AASB 16 Leases - including variable and 

termination lease payments.
   Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value leases are for assets 
   individually valued at less than $5,000.
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5. Expenses (continued)

 (c) Other expenses (continued)

  (ii) Accounting policy: lease costs (continued)

   Previous accounting policy

   In the previous reporting year, leases where the lessor retained substantially all the risks and benefits of 
   ownership of the asset were classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of 
   any incentives received from the lessor) were expensed to profit or loss in the reporting years in which they 
   were incurred, being representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

6. Net finance costs

 (a) Accounting policy

  Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested.

  Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
  construction or production of qualifying assets (being assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
  time to be ready for their intended use) are capitalised to form part of the cost of that asset. All other finance 
  costs are expensed in the reporting years in which they are incurred. ‘Net finance costs paid’ in the statement 
  of cash flows is prior to the effect of capitalisation.

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Finance income:
 Interest - -

Finance costs:
 Domestic currency loans not at fair value through profit or loss (230) (258)
 Fair value loss on cash flow hedges (16) (17)
 Interest rate swaps (21) (10)
 Finance lease interest (1) -
 Unwinding of discount on contributory extension scheme - (1)
 Capitalised finance costs 6(b)(i) 4 1

(264) (285)

Net finance costs (264) (285)

  (i) Capitalised financed costs

  For the year ended 30 June 2020, the weighted average interest rate used to capitalise finance costs was 
  3.6 per cent (30 June 2019: 4.1 per cent).          
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7. Income tax equivalent expense

 (a) Accounting policy

  National taxation equivalent regime 
  Western Power operates under the National Taxation Equivalent Regime (NTER). While income tax equivalent 
  payments under this scheme are remitted to the Western Australian State Government, Western Power’s tax 
  equivalent is subject to Australian Taxation Office (ATO) administration. The calculation of the liability in respect 
  of these taxes is governed by the Income Tax Administration Acts and the NTER guidelines as agreed by the 
  State Government.

  Current tax equivalent 
  The income tax equivalent expense for a reporting year comprises current and deferred tax equivalents. The 
  expense is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other 
  comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income 
  or directly in equity respectively.

  Current tax equivalent is the expected tax equivalent payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
  the reporting year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting date, and any 
  adjustment to the tax equivalent in respect of previous years.

  Deferred tax equivalent 
  Deferred tax equivalent is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
  carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
  purposes. Deferred tax equivalent is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied when the 
  asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as 
  at the reporting date.           

  A deferred tax equivalent asset is recognised only to the extent it is probable future taxable profits will be 
  available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax equivalent assets are reviewed at the end of 
  each reporting year and are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable the related tax equivalent benefit will 
  be realised. Unrecognised deferred tax equivalent assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
  recognised to the extent it has become probable future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax equivalent 
  asset to be recovered.       

  Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
  current tax equivalent assets and liabilities, and when the deferred tax equivalent balances relate to the same 
  taxation authority.
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7. Income tax equivalent expense (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2019/20 2018/19

Current 
$M

Deferred 
$M

Total 
$M

Current 
$M

Deferred 
$M

Total 
$M

Income tax equivalent expense (98) (69) (167) (84) (70) (154)

Adjustment for income tax equivalent of previous years (1) (1) (2) 5 (4) 1
(99) (70) (169) (79) (74) (153)

  As at 30 June 2020, Western Power’s current tax equivalent was $98 million (30 June 2019: $84 million).

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:

 Profit for the reporting year (169) (153)

Current tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent expense (99) (79)
Deferred tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent expense comprises:
 Movement in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 17) 2 1
 Movement in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 17) (72) (75)

(169) (153)

 (c) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to prima facie tax equivalent payable

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 560 519

Income tax equivalent expense at the Australian tax rate of 30 per cent (30 June 2019: 30 per cent) (168) (156)
Income tax equivalent effect of amounts not (taxable)/deductible in calculating taxable income:
 Non deductible expenses 2 3
 Research and development incentives (1) (1)
Current income tax equivalent expense (167) (154)
Adjustment for current tax equivalent of previous years (1) 5
Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of previous years (1) (4)
Total income tax equivalent expense (169) (153)

 (d) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 14 29
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss (5) (5)
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss - -

9 24
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In this section
This section identifies the assets used to generate Western Power’s operating profit and the liabilities incurred as a 
result. (Refer to section 4 for the liabilities relating to Western Power’s financing activities).

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities

 Western Power classifies and subsequently measures all financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost   
 with the exception of derivative financial instruments, measured at fair value.

 Financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost when the following conditions are met:

• the financial asset is held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 The carrying amount of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at the reporting dates presented, 
 are below. These financial instruments are held to support the operations of the business.

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 28 - 28 32 - 32
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 10 247 1 248 244 - 244
Total financial assets 275 1 276 276 - 276

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables: 14 178 1 179 174 1 175
 Trade payables and accruals 137 - 137 129 - 129
 Other payables 37 - 37 41 - 41
 Contributory extension scheme 4 1 5 4 1 5
Borrowings: 19 36 7,507 7,543 13 7,351 7,364
 Domestic working capital facility 36 - 36 13 - 13
 Domestic currency loans - 7,455 7,455 - 7,292 7,292
 Accrued interest - 52 52 - 59 59
Lease liabilities 20 9 16 25 - - -

Derivative financial instruments (used for hedging) 21 15 84 99 42 69 111
Total financial liabilities 238 7,608 7,846 229 7,421 7,650

 Details on the accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment of the above financial assets 
 and financial liabilities are set out in the relevant notes indicated above. The fair values of Western Power’s financial 
 assets and financial liabilities are indicated overleaf.
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8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

 (a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

  Other than below, the fair values of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities are assumed to 
  approximate their carrying amounts. The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
  transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  

2019/20 2018/19

Note

Carrying 
amount 

$M

Fair 
value 

$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M

Fair 
value 

$M
Contributory extension scheme (current financial liabilities) 14 4 4 4 4
Contributory extension scheme (non-current financial liabilities) 14 1 1 1 2
Domestic currency loans (non-current financial liabilities) 19 7,455 7,877 7,292 7,670

  (i) Trade and other receivables and payables

   The fair value of receivables and payables with a remaining life of less than one year is deemed to be the 
   notional amount due to their short-term nature. The fair value of all other receivables and payables is 
   estimated at the present value of future cash flows, discounted using the current market rates of interest 
   available for similar receivables and payables, unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial.

  (ii) Derivative financial instruments

   The fair value of derivative financial instruments in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
   end of the reporting year. For derivatives not traded in active markets the valuation techniques in note 22(b) 
   are used. These techniques result in fair values classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in 
   note 22(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently 
   calculated by the provider of the instrument.

  (iii) Contributory extension scheme

   The fair value of the contributory extension scheme is calculated by discounting the expected future 
   payments using the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) zero coupon rates whose terms most 
   closely match the terms of the related payables. The average coupon rate used for discounting at 30 June 
   2020 was 0.3 per cent (30 June 2019: 1.5 per cent). The fair value is classified as level 2 in the fair value 
   hierarchy (as defined in note 22(a)) because the inputs are based on observable market data.

  (iv) Domestic currency loans  

   The fair value of domestic currency loans is calculated by discounting the expected future principal and interest 
   cash flows using the interest rates below. This is except for loans linked to the consumer price index (CPI), 
   which are independently fair valued by the WATC, the provider of these instruments.

2019/20 2018/19
WATC yield curve 0.2% - 2.6% 1.3% - 2.1%
Bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate 0.1% 1.2%
Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve 0.2% - 0.8% 1.0% - 1.5%

   The fair value of domestic currency loans is classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in note 
   22(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently   
   calculated by the provider of the borrowings.

 (b) Recognised fair value measurements

  Refer to note 22 for details of the assets and liabilities recognised and measured at fair value in the financial 
  statements as at the reporting dates presented.
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9. Cash and cash equivalents

 (a) Accounting policy

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other 
  short-term deposits that have an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
  amounts of cash. As at 30 June 2020, Western Power did not have any short-term deposits (30 June 2019: nil).

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits as 
  defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. As at 30 June 2020, Western Power did not have a bank 
  overdraft (30 June 2019: nil).

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Current
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Cash at bank 28 32

28 32

  Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

 (c) Reconciliation of profit to net cash inflows from operating activities

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 366
Non-cash items:
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) 364 349
 Written down value on disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 17
 Non-cash capital contributions 9(d) (48) (63)
Items classified as investing and financing activities:
 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment (12) (5)
 Net finance costs 6 264 285
Movements in operating assets and liabilities:
 Movement in trade and other receivables (6) (1)
 Movement in inventories 3 -
 Movement in trade and other payables 22 1
 Movement in provisions 6 8
 Movement in deferred income (87) 63
 Movement in tax equivalent liabilities 78 24
Net cash inflows from operating activities 1,002 1,044

 (d) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Gifted network assets 12(f)(i) 48 63
Right-of-use assets 13 12 -
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9. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

 (e) Changes in borrowing liabilities arising from financing activities

  Movements in borrowings during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
At 1 July 7,364 7,280
Cash movements:
 Proceeds from borrowings 1,675 925
 Repayments of borrowings (1,541) (842)
Non-cash movements 9(e)(i) 45 1
At 30 June 7,543 7,364

  (i) Non-cash movements

   Non-cash movements include borrowing accretions paid on maturity, the fair value of cash flow hedges 
   re-classified to profit or loss over the terms of the borrowings and movements in accrued interest.  

10. Trade and other receivables

 (a) Accounting policy

  Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, being the value of the invoice sent to the 
  customer, and subsequently measured at amortised cost less an allowance for impairment. Trade receivables 
  also include an estimate for the value of unbilled network tariff revenue.

  Trade and other receivables are classified as current assets unless collection is not expected for more than 
  12 months after the reporting date. Where payments are due after one year, they are measured at their net 
  present value to reflect the economic cost of the delayed payment.

  Impairment 
  An impairment allowance is recognised for the expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. ECLs are 
  based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all 
  cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to 
  short term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting would be immaterial.

  Western Power applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs, that is, an impairment allowance is 
  recognised for credit losses expected to result from all possible default events over the lifetime of the trade 
  receivable. This is estimated using a provision matrix based on Western Power’s historical credit loss 
  experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the receivables and economic environment.

  Amounts impaired are recognised in profit or loss. They are generally written off when there is no expectation 
  of recovery. Indicators of this include failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan and/or if past due for a 
  significant period. Any subsequent recoveries of amounts written off are credited to profit or loss.
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10. Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers for services provided or goods sold in the ordinary 
  course of business. They are usually settled on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed 
  otherwise. Other receivables generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the 
  business.

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Trade receivables 10(c) 246 - 246 243 - 243
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 10(d) (3) - (3) (3) - (3)

243 - 243 240 - 240
Prepayments 11 - 11 9 - 9
Other receivables 4 1 5 4 - 4
Total trade and other receivables 258 1 259 253 - 253

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled trade receivables

  As at 30 June 2020, trade receivables included unbilled network tariff revenue of $150 million (30 June 2019: 
  $144 million). Refer to note 4(c) for further details on the estimation of this amount.

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables

  The allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
  loss rates. Western Power uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
  impairment calculation, based on past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates 
  at the end of each reporting date. 

  Refer to notes 18(c)(i) and 18(c)(ii) respectively for details of the trade receivables ‘impaired’ and ‘past due but 
  not impaired’ as at the reporting dates presented, including key assumptions and inputs.   

11. Inventories

 (a) Accounting policy

  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 
  weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them 
  to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
  of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Inventories consist of materials required for the maintenance and operation of the network, as well as for 
  general construction works.

Current
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Raw materials and stores 83 86

83 86
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11. Inventories (continued)

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

  Inventories expensed to profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2020 were $36 million (30 June 2019: 
  $40 million).

  As at 30 June 2020, the write down of inventory to net realisable value was $2 million (30 June 2019: 
  $5 million). This expense has been recognised in ‘materials and services’ in profit or loss. 

12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment

  (i) Cost 
   Property, plant and equipment represents the capital works and plant required for the operation of the 
   business, and is recognised at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
   impairment losses. Historical cost is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition or 
   construction, and includes all expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. 
   Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign 
   currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

   The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and labour, and any other costs, directly 
   attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Gifted network assets are 
   recognised at fair value at the point the assets are energised.

   Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when it is probable the item 
   associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably. The 
   carrying amounts of items replaced are derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance, plus minor capital 
   assets less than $5,000, are expensed to profit or loss in the reporting years in which they are incurred.

  (ii) Depreciation 
   In order to recognise the loss of service potential of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is 
   calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives below, making allowances where 
   appropriate for residual values.

Category of property, plant and equipment    Estimated useful life (years)
Substations, transformers, poles and cables 45 - 50
Buildings 40
Land improvements and infrastructure 25
Meters, streetlights 20 - 25
Stand-alone power systems 10 - 20
Pole reinforcements, advance meters 15
Furniture and fittings, refurbishments, other plant and equipment 10
Communications 7 - 10
Fleet 5 - 10
Computer hardware 4
Leasehold improvements lease life

Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation is depreciated 
over the estimated residual useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets 
in the course of construction.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed annually, and adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes 
recognised as a change in accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2020, Western Power did not recognise any 
changes in depreciation estimates (30 June 2019: nil).
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12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment (continued) 

  (iii) Rehabilitation costs 
   Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the item includes the present 
   value of the anticipated costs of rehabilitating the site on which it is located.   

  (iv) Derecognition 
   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
   benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the 
   derecognition of an asset are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised 
   in profit or loss.

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets

  (i)  Cost 
   Intangible assets represent identifiable capitalised software costs and intellectual property, and are 
   recognised at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
   Subsequent costs are included in intangible assets only when it is probable the item associated with the 
   cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably.

   Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if an asset is created that can be identified; it 
   is probable the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and the development cost of the asset 
   can be measured reliably. Where no internally generated asset can be recognised the development 
   expenditure is expensed to profit or loss.

  (ii) Amortisation 
   In order to recognise the loss of service potential of intangible assets, amortisation is calculated using the 
   straight-line method over the estimated useful lives below, making allowances where appropriate for residual 
   values.        

Category of intangible assets     Estimated useful life (years)
Intellectual property 3 - 25
Software (major developments/enhancements) 5 - 10
Software (minor purchases/enhancements) 2.5

   Intangible assets received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation are amortised over their 

   estimated residual useful lives.

   The residual values, estimated useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets are reviewed 
   annually, and adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a 
   change in accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2020, Western Power did not recognise any changes in 
   amortisation estimates (30 June 2019: nil).

  (iii) Derecognition 
   An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to 
   arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are 
   determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.
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12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (c) Impairment of non-financial assets

  At each reporting date, Western Power considers any indicators of impairment to non-financial assets, that is, 
  events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be fully recoverable. An 
  impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
  amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s or groups of assets (being cash generating units 
  (CGU)) value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
  asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
  or groups of assets. 

  As a not-for-profit entity, Western Power determines value in use using the current replacement cost of the 
  asset when the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to 
  generate net cash inflows and where Western Power would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining 
  future economic benefits.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and, where material, are disclosed separately. Any 
  impairment losses recognised in previous years are assessed at the end of each reporting date for any 
  indications the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a  
  change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
  the extent the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
  determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

 (d) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Freehold 
land 
$M

Buildings 
$M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under 

construction 
$M

Total  
property, plant 
and equipment 

$M

Computer 
software 

$M

Intellectual 
property 

$M

Total 
intangible 

assets 
$M

Cost 123 203 13,463 605 14,394 465 24 489
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
amortisation - (64) (3,118) - (3,182) (303) (19) (322)
Carrying amount 
at 30 June 2020 123 139 10,345 605 11,212 162 5 167

Cost 98 198 12,856 462 13,614 407 18 425
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
amortisation - (59) (2,797) - (2,856) (271) (15) (286)
Carrying amount 
at 30 June 2019 98 139 10,059 462 10,758 136 3 139

 (e) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Depreciation expense - property, plant and equipment (excluding capitalised depreciation) 5(b) (339) (327)
Amortisation expense - intangible assets 5(b) (37) (33)

  Refer to notes 12(a)(ii) and 12(b)(ii) respectively for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and 
  estimated useful lives applied. 
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12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (f) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting 

  years presented, are below:          

Freehold 
land 
$M

Buildings 
$M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under 

construction 
$M

Total  
property, 
plant and 

equipment 
$M

Computer 
software 

$M

Intellectual 
property 

$M

Total 
intangible 

assets 
$M

Carrying amount at 
1 July 2019 98 139 10,059 462 10,758 136 3 139
Cost:
 Additions (note 12(f)(i)) - - 2 888 890 - - -
 Transfers to inventory - - - (5) (5) - - -
 Transfers in/(out) 27 5 644 (740) (64) 58 6 64
 Disposals (2) - (39) - (41) - - -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
 Transfers in/(out) - - (1) - (1) 1 - 1
 Disposals - - 14 - 14 - - -
 Depreciation and 
 amortisation 
 (note 12(e)) - (5) (334) - (339) (33) (4) (37)
Carrying amount at 
30 June 2020 123 139 10,345 605 11,212 162 5 167

Carrying amount at 
1 July 2018 101 128 9,751 385 10,365 137 5 142
Cost:
 Additions (note 12(f)(i)) - - - 774 774 - - -
 Transfers to inventory - - - (7) (7) - - -
 Transfers in/(out) - 16 644 (690) (30) 30 - 30
 Disposals (3) - (17) - (20) - - -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
 Disposals - - 3 - 3 - - -
 Depreciation and 
 amortisation 
 (note 12(e)) - (5) (322) - (327) (31) (2) (33)
Carrying amount at 
30 June 2019 98 139 10,059 462 10,758 136 3 139

  (i) Additions to works under construction

   Contributed assets 
   Western Power recognises non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted network assets in 
   accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(a). For the year ended 30 June 2020, the fair value of gifted 
   network assets included in additions was $48 million (30 June 2019: $63 million).     

   Capitalised finance costs 
   Western Power capitalises finance costs in accordance with the accounting policy in note 6(a). For the year 
   ended 30 June 2020, additions included finance costs of $4 million attributable to assets in the course of 
   construction (30 June 2019: $1 million).

 (g) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial assets (including right-of-use assets)

  Western Power assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use 
  assets at least annually in accordance with the accounting policy in note 12(c). This involves evaluating 
  impairment indicators specific to Western Power and the particular asset or CGU that may differ from actual 
  results including for market values; changes in technical, economic or legal environments; obsolescence or 
  physical damage.

  There were no indicators of impairment to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use 
  assets as at 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: no indicators).        
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13. Right-of-use assets

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Cost

   Right-of-use assets represent leased fleet and other equipment (including properties and information 
   technology) required for the operation of the business. They are recognised at historical cost less 
   accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, adjusted for lease liability re 
   measurements. Historical cost is measured at the amount of the initial lease liability plus any:

• lease payments made at, or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
• initial direct costs
• restoration costs including dismantling and removing the underlying asset.

 
  (ii) Depreciation

   In order to recognise the loss of service potential, right-of-use assets are generally depreciated on a straight- 
   line basis over the shorter of the asset’s estimated useful life and the lease term.

   Where Western Power is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is 
   depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

  (iii) Impairment

   Refer to note 12(c) for details of Western Power’s ‘Impairment of non-financial assets’ accounting policy.

  For the impact to Western Power’s accounting policy for right-of-use assets on adoption of AASB 16, 
  including the amounts recognised in the financial statements refer to note 31(c).    

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Fleet 
$M

Other 
$M

Total right-of-use 
assets 

$M
Cost 25 9 34
Accumulated depreciation (8) (1) (9)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 17 8 25

Cost - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - -
Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 - - -

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Depreciation 5(b) (9) -

Refer to note 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation method and estimated useful lives applied.  

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities

  The historical cost of a right-of-use asset is largely determined by the initial measurement of the lease liability. 
  Refer to note 20(d) for further details on the estimation of this measurement, being the present value of lease 
  liabilities.

 (e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial assets

  Refer to note 12(g) for details of Western Power’s critical accounting estimates and judgements used for the 
  ‘impairment of right-of-use assets’.
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14. Trade and other payables

 (a) Accounting policy
  Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
  Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due for at least 12 months 
  after the reporting date.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Western Power prior to the 
end of the reporting year which are unpaid. They are usually settled between 30 and 45 days of recognition.

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Trade payables and accruals 137 - 137 129 - 129
Other payables 37 - 37 41 - 41
Contributory extension scheme 14(b)(i) 4 1 5 4 1 5

178 1 179 174 1 175

  (i) Contributory extension scheme

   Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received from customers to extend 
   specific electricity supplies. These non-interest bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution 
   period unless other customers connect to the extensions. By 2023, when the scheme finishes, all scheme 
   members will have had their contributions refunded.

15. Provisions

 (a) Accounting policy
  Provisions are recognised when Western Power has either a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
  of past events; it is probable an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable 
  estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of 
  management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation as at the reporting   
  date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects the market assessments of the time value 
  of money and the risks specific to the liability. The movement in the provision due to the passage of time is 
  recognised as a finance cost.          

  (i) Employee benefits 
   Provisions for the following employee benefit liabilities are recognised as a result of services rendered up to 
   the reporting date.           

   Wages and salaries 
   Liabilities arising in respect of employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of 
   the reporting date are measured at their nominal amount based on remuneration rates that are expected to 
   be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for wages and salaries is recognised in ‘trade payables 
   and accruals’. The liability for all other short-term employee benefits is recognised in the provision for 
   employee benefits.

   Annual and long service leave 
   The liabilities arising in respect of annual and long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly 
   within 12 months of the reporting date. They are recognised in the provision for employee benefits, and 
   measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
   employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors 
   including the expected future wages and salaries levels, experience of employee departures and periods 
   of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose terms 
   most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. Independent actuarial valuations are carried out at 
   each reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
   assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (i) Employee benefits (continued)

   Annual and long service leave (continued) 
   Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position where there is   
   no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when 
   actual settlement is expected to occur.         

   Retirement benefit obligations 
   All employees of Western Power are entitled to benefits upon retirement, disability or death from any number 
   of superannuation plans, which may include a defined contribution section, a defined benefit section, or both.

   Defined contribution plans 
   A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Western Power pays fixed 
   contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
   Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the reporting years in which the 
   services are rendered by employees.

   Defined benefit plans 
   A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit other than a defined contribution plan. A liability or asset 
   in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans is recognised in the statement of financial position, and is 
   measured separately for each plan at the present value of the defined benefit obligation in respect of services 
   provided by employees up to the reporting date, less the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

   The present value of defined benefit superannuation plans is based upon expected future payments and is 
   calculated using discounted cash flows consistent with the projected unit credit method. Consideration is 
   given to factors including the expected future wages and salaries level, experience of employee departures 
   and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose 
   terms most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. An independent actuarial valuation is carried out  
   at each reporting date.          

   The annual net defined benefit interest expense and/or income is determined by applying the discount rate 
   used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting year to the net defined   
   benefit liability and/or asset. It is recognised immediately along with all other defined benefit plan expenses  
   including past services costs, in ‘employee related expenses’ in profit or loss.

   Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
   (including changes in the bond rate) are recognised in the reporting years in which they occur, directly in 
   other comprehensive income. They are included in ‘retained earnings’ in the statements of changes in equity 
   and financial position.

   Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
   are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs. 

  (ii) Rehabilitation costs

   A provision for site rehabilitation costs is recognised when there is either a legal or constructive obligation to 
   rehabilitate a site as a result of a past event; it is probable a rehabilitation expense will be incurred to settle 
   the obligation; and the obligation costs can be reliably estimated. The amount of the provision for future 
   rehabilitation costs is capitalised into the cost of the related property, plant and equipment, and depreciated 
   over the estimated useful life.

   Rehabilitation costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, but that do not have a   
   future economic benefit are expensed to profit or loss.        
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Employee benefits:
 Annual leave 15(e) 37 - 37 33 - 33
 Long service leave 15(e) 47 10 57 48 7 55
 Other 15(b)(i) - - - - - -

84 10 94 81 7 88

Rehabilitation costs 4 4 8 3 6 9
Environmental costs 15(b)(ii) - 2 2 - 2 2

88 16 104 84 15 99

  (i) Other: retirement benefit obligations

   Nature of benefits provided 
   Western Power contributes to the defined benefit pension scheme (Scheme) in which a pension benefit is 
   payable on retirement, death or invalidity, or a lump sum benefit on resignation. The Scheme is closed to 
   new members. There are no assets in the Scheme.

   For the reporting years presented, the below provision and expenses were recognised for the Scheme:

2019/20 
$’000

2018/19 
$’000

Provision
Defined benefit retirement obligations 56 54

Employee related expense
Net defined benefit expense (57) (44)

   Description of regulatory framework 
   The Scheme operates under the State Superannuation Act 2000 (WA) and the State Superannuation 
   Regulations 2001 (WA).

   Although the Scheme is not formally subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, 
   the Western Australian State Government has undertaken in the Heads of Government Agreement to 
   operate the Scheme in accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation. As an exempt public sector 
   superannuation scheme as defined in the SIS legislation, the Scheme is not subject to any minimum funding 
   requirements.           

   As a constitutionally protected superannuation fund as defined in the Income Tax Assessment legislation,   
   the Scheme is not required to pay tax.         

   Description of other entities’ responsibilities for governance of the Scheme 
   The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) is the Scheme’s Trustee and is responsible for 
   the governance of the Scheme. As Trustee, GESB has a legal obligation to act solely in the best interests of 
   the Scheme beneficiaries. GESB has the below roles:

• administration of the Scheme and payments to the beneficiaries when required in accordance with the 
Scheme rules

• management and investment of the Scheme assets (where relevant)
• compliance with the Heads of Government Agreement.

  (ii) Environmental costs

   Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety expenditure.
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments: present value of employee benefits

  The present value of employee benefits, including annual and long service leave and retirement benefit 
  obligations, is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
  assumptions that may differ from actual results including the discount rate, future wages and salaries levels, 
  employee departures and settlement dates.

  All actuarial assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date with any remeasurement gains or losses 
  recognised in accordance with the accounting policy in note 15(a).      

 (d) Movements in provisions      

  Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year presented, other than employee benefits, are below:

    
Rehabilitation costs 

$M
Environmental costs 

$M
At 1 July 2019 9 2
Charged in the reporting year (1) -
At 30 June 2020 8 2

 (e) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

  The annual and long service leave benefits reported as current because Western Power does not have an 
  unconditional right to defer settlement, but that based on past experience are not expected to be taken or paid 
  within the next 12 months of the reporting dates presented, are below:     

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Current annual leave:
 Annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months 24 21
 Annual leave expected to be settled after 12 months 13 12

37 33
Current long service leave:
 Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months 10 10
 Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months 37 38

47 48

16. Deferred income    

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions received in advance are deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue at the point the 
  developers or customers are connected to the network. This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation of 
  the underlying connection contract.

  Contributions are classified as current liabilities unless connection to the network is not due for at least 
  12 months after the reporting date.  

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Deferred income largely relates to contributions received in advance from developers and customers.

2019/20 2018/19

Current 
$M

Non-current 
$M

Total 
$M

Current 
$M

Non-current 
$M

Total 
$M

Deferred income 137 25 162 146 103 249
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16. Deferred income (continued)

 (c) Movements in deferred income

  Movements in deferred income during the reporting years presented, are below:

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

At 1 July 249 186
Received in the reporting year 128 214
Earned in the reporting year (215) (151)
At 30 June 162 249

17. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  

 (a) Accounting policy

  Refer to note 7(a) for details of Western Power’s ‘deferred tax equivalent’ accounting policy.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  The temporary differences attributable to deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities as at the reporting dates  
  presented, are below:

2019/20 2018/19

Non-current

Deferred 
tax asset 

$M

Deferred 
tax 

liability 
$M

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset) 

$M

Deferred 
tax asset 

$M

Deferred 
tax 

liability 
$M

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset) 

$M
Property, plant and equipment (PPE), and intangible 
assets - 1,034 1,034 - 962 962
Derivative financial instruments 51 - (51) 42 - (42)
Provisions for employee benefits 28 - (28) 26 - (26)
Other temporary differences 5 - (5) 5 - (5)
Total deferred tax equivalent 84 1,034 950 73 962 889

Set-off deferred tax equivalent assets pursuant to 
set-off provisions (84) (84) - (73) (73) -
Net deferred tax equivalent - 950 950 - 889 889

Net deferred tax equivalent:
 Expected to be realised within 12 months 33 - (33) 39 - (39)
 Expected to be realised after more than 12 months 51 1,034 983 34 962 928

84 1,034 950 73 962 889
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17. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities (continued)

 (c) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting years presented, are below:

Derivative financial 
instruments 

$M

Provisions for 
employee benefits 

$M

Other temporary 
differences 

$M

Deferred tax 
equivalent assets 

$M
At 1 July 2019 42 26 5 73
Charged to profit or loss - 2 - 2
Charged to other comprehensive income 9 - - 9
At 30 June 2020 51 28 5 84

At 1 July 2018 18 24 6 48
Charged to profit or loss - 2 (1) 1
Charged to other comprehensive income 24 - - 24
At 30 June 2019 42 26 5 73

 (d) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting years presented, are below:

PPE, and intangible assets 
$M

Deferred tax equivalent 
liabilities 

$M
At 1 July 2019 962 962
Charged to profit or loss 71 71
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years 1 1
At 30 June 2020 1,034 1,034

At 1 July 2018 887 887
Charged to profit or loss 71 71
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years 4 4
At 30 June 2019 962 962
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In this section
This section presents the liabilities relating to Western Power’s financing activities, as well as the key financial risks and 
equity of the business.

Section 4: Debt and equity

18. Financial risk management

 (a) Overview

  The Western Power Board has overall responsibility for financial risk management. To assist in the performance of  
  this responsibility, the Board has established a Finance, Risk and Audit sub-Committee (FRAC).

  The FRAC is supported in its oversight role by the Treasury Management Committee (TMC) and the Internal   
  Audit area. The TMC, comprising senior business experts, considers all financial risk management policies and   
  activities. The specialist Internal Audit area undertakes regular and ad-hoc reviews of financial risk management 
  controls and procedures.

  The Western Power financial management policy sets the principles and framework for governing financial 
  risks arising from business operations. Adherence to this policy ensures that at all times, Western Power 
  maintains an appropriate level of control over financial and associated risks that accords with strategic objectives 
  and legal responsibilities.  

  The principal financial risks arising from Western Power’s current operations as described in this note are 
  summarised below:           

Risk Note Arises from: Measured by: Managed by:
Market risk
Interest rate risk 18(b)(i) • Borrowing obligations • Sensitivity analysis • Interest rate swaps

• Forward borrowing commitments
Foreign currency risk 18(b)(ii) • Commercial transactions • Sensitivity analysis • Forward exchange contracts
Credit risk 18(c) • Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments)

• Derivative financial instruments

• Carrying and fair 
 value amounts

• Ageing analysis

• Credit ratings

• Counterparty limits

• Exposure monitoring

• Bank guarantees, insurance 
bonds or cash deposits

• Legal collection of debts
Liquidity risk 18(d) • Trade and other payables

• Borrowings

• Lease liabilities

• Derivative financial instruments

• Contractural maturities • Available cash and borrowing facilities

• Debt maturity profiles
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk

  Market risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
  because of changes in market prices. Western Power has exposures to movements in interest and foreign 
  exchange rates.

  (i) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
   will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from 
   borrowing obligations with floating rates.

   Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to manage exposures to interest 
   rate movements. Debt portfolio structure guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from 
   Western Power’s commercial and regulatory environment. Interest rate exposure mix guidelines are set to 
   ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk from interest rate volatility.

   Interest rate forecasts are continuously monitored and, where appropriate, exposures to interest rates are 
   managed through the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward 
   domestic borrowing commitments. The critical terms of these hedging instruments must align with the 
   hedged items.

   Effects of hedge accounting on financial position and performance 
   The effects of interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments on the financial position 
   and performance for the reporting dates presented, are below:

Note

Interest rate swaps
Forward domestic 

borrowing commitments

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Carrying amount (liability) ($M) 21 84 69 15 42
Quantitiy (#) 36 34 14 6
Notional amount ($M) 1,125 1,075 650 450
Maturity date May-22 

to Jul-28
May-22 

to Jul-28
Jul-20 Jul-19 

to Oct-19
Hedge ratio 21(b)(ii) 1:1 1:1 1:1 1:1
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments ($M) (15) (48) (15) (42)
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge 
effectiveness ($M)

15 48 15 42
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign currency risk

   Foreign currency risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
   will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk in Western Power arises   
   from commercial transactions denominated in foreign currency, principally for the purchase of capital   
   equipment from foreign suppliers.

   Western Power’s foreign currency risk management strategy aims to manage significant exposures through 
   the use of Board approved hedging instruments, such as forward exchange contracts that provide certainty 
   on costs. The critical terms of these hedging instruments must align with the hedged items.

   Western Power’s managed foreign currency risk as at the reporting dates presented, is below.

2019/20 2018/19

Canadian 
dollar Euro

United 
States 
dollar

Canadian 
dollar Euro

United 
States 
dollar

Weighted average foreign exchange rate 0.8968 0.5829 0.6767 - 0.6241 0.7032
Forward exchange contract maturing ($’000):
 within one year 5,065 1,058 4,004 - 1,326 7,744
 later than one year but not later than five years - 1,283 - - - 734
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk (continued)

  (iii) Sensitivity analysis

   The below table summarises the potential impact to the annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive 
   income of Western Power as at the reporting dates presented, due to movements in interest and foreign 
   exchange rates. The assumptions used are based on management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible 
   movement given current market conditions.

Carrying 
amount

Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk
Impact on 

post-tax profit 
+/-1%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 
income +/-1%

Impact on 
post-tax profit 

+/-10%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 
income +/-10%

$M $M $M $M $M $M $M $M $M
At 30 June 2020
Cash and cash 
equivalents 28 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other 
receivables 248 - - - - - - - -

Total financial assets 276 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other payables 179 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings1 7,543 (15) 15 - - - - - -
Lease liabilities 25 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest rate 
swaps2 84 - - 39 (41) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contract - - - - - - - (1) 1
Derivatives-forward 
borrowings3 15 - - 62 (62) - - - -

Total financial liabilities 7,846 (15) 15 101 (103) - - (1) 1

At 30 June 2019
Cash and cash 
equivalents 32 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other 
receivables 244 - - - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest rate 
swaps2 - - - 1 (1) - - - -

Total financial assets 276 - - 1 (1) - - - -

Trade and other payables 175 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings1 7,364 (16) 16 - - - - - -
Lease liabilities - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest rate 
swaps2 69 - - 45 (47) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contract - - - - - - - (1) 1
Derivatives-forward 
borrowings3 42 - - 40 (40) - - - -

Total financial liabilities 7,650 (16) 16 85 (87) - - (1) 1

   As at 30 June 2020, the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s:

   1 floating rate borrowings of $2,598 million (30 June 2019: $2,623 million) and variable rate working capital 
   borrowings of $36 million (30 June 2019: $13 million). The majority of Western Power’s borrowings are at 
   fixed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved treasury management standard.

   2 36 interest rate swap agreements (30 June 2019: 34) at a notional amount of $1,125 million (30 June 
   2019: $1,075 million). These agreements are entered into to hedge against floating interest rate exposures 
   arising from borrowing obligations.

   3 14 fixed rate forward domestic borrowing commitment (30 June 2019: six) at a notional amount of $650 
   million (30 June 2019: $450 million). These commitments are entered into to mitigate refinancing risk and to 
   hedge against floating interest rate exposures arising from future borrowing obligations. They are recognised 
   as derivative financial instruments in the reporting years between entering into the forward domest borrowing  
   agreements and draw downs of the loan principal.
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (c) Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument   
  fails to discharge its contractual obligation. The maximum exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best 
  represented by the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position as at  
  the reporting dates (refer to note 8).

  Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed   
  otherwise. Credit risk is actively managed through the adherence of Western Power’s credit risk and treasury 
  management standards, the use of credit ratings and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power manages 
  the quality of financial assets and its concentrations of credit risk by reference to external credit ratings, where  
  available, or to historic information on counterparty default rates. Bank guarantees, insurance bonds or cash 
  deposits are also obtained as security where necessary.

  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables

   Western Power applies the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses on trade receivables. 
   This approach recognises a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables, being:

• a loss allowance from day one
• an estimate for forward-looking losses to reflect current conditions and forecasts of future conditions.

   To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables are grouped into six main customer categories 
   based on shared credit risk characteristics. The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment 
   profiles of trade receivables over a period of six years before the reporting dates presented, and the 
   corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.

   The historical credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on 
   macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the trade receivables. Western Power has 
   identified the Western Australian ‘gross state product’ to be the most relevant macroeconomic factor, and 
   accordingly adjusts the historical credit loss rates based on the expected changes in this factor.

   For the year ended 30 June 2020, the changes in the Western Australian ‘gross state product’ reflected 
   estimates for the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on current and future economic conditions. 
   This did not result in a material change to Western Power’s allowance for impairment of trade receivables.

   The loss allowance for the impairment of trade receivables for the reporting years presented, is below. This 
   allowance is recognised in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss.

Current
30 

days late
60 

days late
90 

days late

More than 
90 days 

late Total
At 30 June 2020
Expected loss rate 1.2% - - - 28.6%
Gross carrying amount ‐ trade receivables ($M) 85 3 2 1 7 98
Impairment of trade receivables 1 - - - 2 3

 

Current
30 

days late
60 

days late
90 

days late

More than 
90 days 

late Total
At 30 June 2019
Expected loss rate 1.1% - - - 33.3%
Gross carrying amount ‐ trade receivables ($M) 91 2 - - 6 99
Impairment of trade receivables 1 - - - 2 3
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (c) Credit risk (continued)

  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables (continued)

   Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables during the reporting years presented, are below:

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

At 1 July 3 3
Allowed for in the reporting year 1 1
Previously allowed for and written off in the reporting year (1) (1)
At 30 June 3 3

    There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts.

  (ii) Trade receivables past due but not impaired

   The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired as at the reporting dates presented, is below:

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

between 1 and 59 days 5 2
between 60 and 89 days 1 -
more than 90 days 5 4

11 6

 (d) Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
  liabilities as they fall due. Western Power is governed by the treasury management standard which requires 
  active management of cash and ensures adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding 
  requirements. This includes actively managing working capital for immediate needs, and the debt portfolio 
  within maturity guidelines to mitigate refinancing risk.

  (i) Financing arrangements

   Western Power has in place a borrowing facility with the WATC. Included in this, is a working capital facility 
   that can be drawn down to meet short-term financing needs. The facility’s borrowing limit is set through the 
   annual Western Australian State Budget or as amended from time to time by a formal process, including the 
   mid-year State Budget review or via a letter of amendment.

   The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by Western Power for the reporting year ended 30 June 
   2020 was $7,614 million (30 June 2019: $7,462 million). This is per the 2020/21 mid-year State Budget 
   review handed down in December 2019 (30 June 2019: 2020 State budget handed down in May 2019).

   The unused portion of Western Power’s borrowing facility for the reporting years presented, is below:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Borrowing limit 7,614 7,462
Used portion of borrowing limit:
 Domestic working capital facility 19 (36) (13)
 Domestic currency loans 19 (7,455) (7,292)
Total used portion of borrowing limit (7,491) (7,305)

Unused portion of borrowing limit 123 157

   The maximum amount of borrowings permitted for Western Power for the reporting year ended 30 June 
   2021 remains subject to approval in the 2021 State Budget due to be handed down in October 2020.   
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (d) Liquidity risk (continued)

  (ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

   The below table presents the maturity profile of Western Power’s financial liabilities as at the reporting dates 
   presented, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows, including estimated interest payments and cash 
   flows associated with derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges.   

Note

Within one 
year 
$M

Between 
one and five 

years 
$M

Later than 
five years 

$M

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

(undiscounted) 
$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M
At 30 June 2020
Interest rate swaps: 21
   Net settled 29 56 4 89 84
Forward exchange contract: 21
   (Inflow) (13) (2) - (15)
   Outflow 13 2 - 15 -
Forward domestic borrowing 
commitments1 21 - - - - 15
Total derivative financial liabilities 29 56 4 89 99

Trade and other payables: 14 177 1 - 178 179
   Trade payables and accruals 137 - - 137 137
   Other payables 37 - - 37 37
   Contributory extension scheme 3 1 - 4 5
Borrowings: 19 1,094 3,765 4,637 9,496 7,543
   Domestic working capital facility 36 - - 36 36
   Domestic currency loans 1,046 3,575 3,969 8,590 7,507
   Forward domestic borrowing 
   commitments1 12 190 668 870 -
   Lease liabilities 20 10 14 3 27 25
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 1,281 3,780 4,640 9,701 7,747

At 30 June 2019
Interest rate swaps: 21
   Net settled 17 51 4 72 69
Forward exchange contract: 21
   (Inflow) (13) (1) - (14)
   Outflow 13 1 - 14 -
Forward domestic borrowing 
commitments1 21 - - - - 42
Total derivative financial liabilities 17 51 4 72 111

Trade and other payables: 14 173 3 - 176 175
   Trade payables and accruals 129 - - 129 129
   Other payables 41 - - 41 41
   Contributory extension scheme 3 3 - 6 5
Borrowings: 19 1,855 3,682 4,011 9,548 7,364
   Domestic working capital facility 13 - - 13 13
   Domestic currency loans 1,826 3,299 3,272 8,397 7,351
   Forward domestic borrowing 
   commitments1 16 383 739 1,138 -
Lease liabilities 20 - - - - -
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 2,028 3,685 4,011 9,724 7,539

   1 There are no contractual cash flows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the period between 
   entering into the forward domestic borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. The 
   contractual cash flows after draw down of the agreed loan principal are presented in the ‘borrowings’ 
   section of this table.

   Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn down subject to the borrowings facility 
   and master lending agreement with the WATC at varying maturities. As at 30 June 2020, the average 
   maturity was 5.0 years (30 June 2019: 4.1 years).
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19. Borrowings

 (a) Accounting policy

  Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently 
  measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Western Power has an agreement with the lender 
  that allows refinancing of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. This includes where a 
  forward domestic borrowing commitment exists that replaces the existing borrowing on the date of 
  maturity, and where this extends the maturity of the original borrowing to greater than 12 months after the 
  reporting date.

  Forward domestic borrowing commitments 
  Forward domestic borrowing commitments are entered into with the WATC to borrow specified amounts in the  
  future at pre-determined interest rates. They are recognised as derivative financial instruments in the period 
  between entering into the forward domestic borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. Once 
  the loan is drawn down, the principal is accounted for at fair value like any other borrowing. Any fair value gain 
  or loss relating to the effective portion of the forward is recognised in the hedging reserve and re-classified to 
  profit or loss over the term of the loan.         

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Domestic working capital facility 36 - 36 13 - 13
Domestic currency loans 19(c) - 7,455 7,455 - 7,292 7,292
Accrued interest - 52 52 - 59 59

36 7,507 7,543 13 7,351 7,364

  Western Power’s domestic borrowings are all provided by the WATC, an entity owned by the Western 
  Australian State Government.          

 (c) Classification of borrowings

  As at 30 June 2020, the non-current domestic currency loans of $7,455 million (30 June 2019: $7,292 million) 
  included an amount of $850 million that will become due and payable during the 2020/21 reporting year  
  (30 June 2019: $1,602 million that became due and payable during the 2019/20 reporting year). It is Western 
  Power’s expectation and discretion that this amount will be refinanced under the master lending agreement 
  with the WATC rather than repaid, and therefore has been classified as non-current. This is supported by:

• a master lending agreement with the WATC that allows Western Power to refinance all or any part of 
maturing debt at regular intervals; and

• the expected approval of Western Power’s forecast borrowing requirements for the next four years, 
including no repayment of amounts classified as non-current above, in the 2021 Western Australian State 
Budget due to be handed down in October 2020.
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20. Lease liabilities

 (a) Accounting policy

  Western Power leases fleet and other equipment (including properties and information technology) required 
  for the operation of the business. The lease contracts are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a 
  wide range of different terms and conditions. Where the contracts contain both lease and associated non- 
  lease components, Western Power elects not to separate and instead accounts for as single lease components.

  At the commencement of a lease, the lease liability is measured at the present value of outstanding payments. 
  These payments include:

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivables 
• variable lease payments based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 

lease commencement date
• amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees
• payments under extension options if it is reasonably certain the extension will be exercised
• the exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain the option will be exercised
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects exercising that option.   

        
  Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where this rate is not readily 
  determined an incremental borrowing rate is used. Western Power’s incremental borrowing rate is provided by 
  the WATC, being the provider of Western Power’s borrowings.

  Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or  
  loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
  liability for each period.

  Variable lease payments 
  Variable lease payments can be exposed to potential future increases based on an index or rate. Any increases 
  are not included in the lease liability until they take effect, at which point they are adjusted against the right-of 
  use asset.

  Extension and termination options 
  Leases can include extension and termination options. This is to maximise operational and asset management  
  flexibility. Periods covered by these options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain  
  to be extended or not terminated.

  Short-term and low-value leases 
  Refer to note 5(c)(ii) for details of Western Power’s ‘short term and low-value leases’ accounting policy.

  Previous accounting policy 
  Until the 2018/19 reporting year, Western Power classified leases as either operating leases (30 June 2019: 
  $8 million - refer to note 5(c)) or finance leases. Western Power recognised finance leases where the risks and 
  benefits of asset ownership were substantially retained (30 June 2019: nil). From 1 July 2019, leases are 
  recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability.

  For the impact to Western Power’s accounting policy for lease liabilities on adoption of AASB 16, including the 
  amounts recognised in the financial statements refer to note 31(c).       
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20. Lease liabilities (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2019/20 2018/19

Current 
$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Lease liabilities 9 16 25 - - -

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Finance lease interest 6(b) (1) -

Lease costs: 5(c)
  Expenses relating to short-term leases (1) -
Total lease costs (1) -

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the total cash outflow for leases was $11 million.

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities 

  Western Power measures lease liabilities on a present value basis in accordance with the accounting policy in 
  note 20(a). This involves estimation and judgements associated with identifying leases within contracts, 
  lease versus non-lease components including stand-alone prices, lease terms, variable versus fixed lease 
  payments, discount rates and degree of certainty around exercising extensions and/or terminations options. 

21. Derivative financial instruments

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Derivative financial instruments

   Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is 
   entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value as at each reporting date. The valuation 
   techniques used to measure fair value are further described in note 22(b).

   Derivative financial instruments are presented as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when 
   the fair value is negative.

  (ii) Hedge accounting

   For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

• Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability, or a firm commitment

• Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a 
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction

   At inception of the hedge relationship, Western Power documents the economic relationship between 
   hedging instruments and hedged items including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging 
   instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedged items. Western Power documents 
   the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge transactions.  
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (ii) Hedge accounting (continued) 
   Fair value hedges 
   For all derivative transactions designated as a fair value hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging 
   instrument is recognised in profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or 
   liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. There is no impact in other comprehensive income or the 
   hedging reserve. During the year ended 30 June 2020, Western Power had not accounted for any derivative 
   financial instruments that qualified for hedge accounting as fair value hedges (30 June 2019: nil).

   Cash flow hedges 
   For all derivative transactions designated as a cash flow hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging 
   instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
   accumulated in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

   When the cash flows occur, the amount that has been deferred to equity is re-classified in the same 
   reporting year as the hedged item affects the profit or loss. This is as follows:

• Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (such as property, 
plant and equipment), the amount deferred to equity for the effective portion of a forward exchange 
contract is transferred to the carrying value of the asset. Where there is no recognition of a non-financial 
asset, the effective portion is re-classified to profit or loss in the same reporting year as the hedged item 
affects the profit or loss.

• The amount deferred to equity for the effective portion of an interest rate swap or forward domestic 
borrowing commitment hedging a floating rate borrowing is recognised in ‘finance costs’ in profit or loss, 
in the same reporting year as the interest expense on the hedged loan.

   When a hedging instrument expires, is sold or is terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria 
   for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity, and is 
   recognised when the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
   occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately re-classified to profit or loss.

  (iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

   For all derivative transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any changes in fair value are 
   recognised immediately in profit or loss. During the year ended 30 June 2020, all Western Power’s derivative 
   transactions qualified for hedge accounting (30 June 2019: all qualified).

  (iv)Derecognition

   Derivative financial instruments are derecognised when Western Power no longer controls the contractual 
   rights that comprise the financial instrument. During the year ended 30 June 2020, Western Power did not 
   derecognise any derivative financial instruments (30 June 2019: nil derecognised). 
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)  

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2019/20 2018/19

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Liabilities 21(b)(i)
Interest rate swaps - 84 84 - 69 69
Forward domestic borrowing commitments 15 - 15 42 - 42

15 84 99 42 69 111

  (i) Nature of derivatives

   Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge economic exposures to movements in interest and 
   foreign exchange rates. Western Power uses derivative financial instruments in accordance with Board 
   approved policy. Under this policy the critical terms of the hedging instruments must align with the hedged 
   items. Speculative trading where a derivative is entered into without an underlying economic exposure 
   is strictly prohibited. All derivative activities are carried out by a specialist group within Western Power that 
   has the appropriate skills, experience and supervision.

   As at the reporting dates presented, Western Power used the below derivative financial instruments. All 
   qualified for hedge accounting in accordance with the accounting policy in note 21(a). This is further 
   explained in note 21(b)(ii).          

Instrument Economic exposure hedged

Interest rate swaps Western Power enters into interest rate swaps in order to hedge against floating 
interest rate exposures arising from borrowing obligations.  

Forward exchange contracts Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge against 
foreign currency risk, principally arising from the future purchase of capital 
equipment in foreign currencies.   

Forward domestic borrowing commitments Western Power enters into forward domestic borrowing commitments in order to 
mitigate refinancing risk and to hedge against interest rate exposures arising from 
future borrowing obligations with floating rates.

  (ii) Hedge ineffectiveness

   Hedge ineffectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic 
   prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure an economic relationship exists between the hedged item 
   and hedging instrument. Hedge ineffectiveness can occur due to:

• changes in the forecast timing of the cash flow transaction
• differences in the critical terms between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
• changes in the credit risk of Australia or the derivative counterparty.

   Interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments 
   Western Power enters into interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments that have the 
   same critical terms as the hedged item, including the notional amount, interest rates, payment dates and 
   maturities. Western Power does not hedge all borrowings, therefore the hedged item is identified as a 
   proportion of the outstanding borrowings up to the notional amount of the hedging instrument.

   Forward exchange contracts 
   Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts that have the same critical terms as the hedged 
   item, including the transaction amount, foreign exchange rates and payment dates.

   During the year ended 30 June 2020, Western Power assessed no hedge ineffectiveness (30 June 2019: no 
   hedge ineffectiveness). This is because all critical terms matched, ensuring the economic relationships 
   existed between the hedged items and hedging instruments.
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22. Recognised fair value measurements        

 (a) Fair value hierarchy

  The assets and liabilities of Western Power that are measured and recognised at fair value as at the reporting 
  dates presented, are below, and disclosed by the following fair value hierarchy levels:

  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
    either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).     

  Level 3: Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

2019/20 2018/19
Level 1 

$M
Level 2 

$M
Level 3 

$M
Total 

$M
Level 1 

$M
Level 2 

$M
Level 3 

$M
Total 

$M
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 99 - 99 - 111 - 111

 
It is Western Power’s policy to recognise transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels at the end of 
each reporting year. As at 30 June 2020, there were no transfers between levels for recurring fair value 
measurements (30 June 2019: no transfers). 

 (b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values 

  Recurring fair value measurements 
  The fair value of derivatives in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting 
  year. Where derivatives are entered into that are not traded in active markets the fair value is determined using 
  valuation techniques. These techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available 
  and rely as little as possible on specific estimates. In some instances, independent valuations from the provider 
  of the instrument are used.

  If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are based on observable market data, or the 
  valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the instrument, the instrument is included in level 2. 
  If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data the instrument is included in 
  level 3. During the year ended 30 June 2020, level 3 valuation techniques were not used (30 June 2019: not 
  used).            

  Specific valuation techniques used to value derivative financial instruments (where relevant) include the following:

• The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated at the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
based on a combination of observable BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves.

• The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using a combination of observable forward 
foreign exchange rates, BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves as at the reporting date.

• The fair value of forward domestic borrowing commitments is independently calculated by the WATC, the 
provider of these instruments.           

 
 All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2. For the potential impact to Western Power’s 
 annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive income due to movements in the key observable inputs being 
 interest and foreign exchange rates, refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 18(b)(iii).     
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23. Contributed equity

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions made by the owner are recognised as a direct adjustment to equity when received.

 (b) Nature of contributions 

  Contributed equity represents the initial and subsequent contributions made by Western Power’s sole owner, 
  the Western Australian State Government. No shares have been allotted.

  The owner’s initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power Corporation, after deducting liabilities, 
  transferred to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner has made subsequent contributions including to the 
  edge of grid and regional power investment programs, to offset dividends paid on capital contributions, the 
  sale of land surplus to requirements and for the recovery of income tax equivalent expense on residential 
  capital contributions.           

 (c) Movements in contributed equity

  Movements in contributed equity during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
At 1 July 1,522 1,411
Contributions received to offset: 23(c)(i)
  Final dividend 33 30
  Interim dividend - 81
Total contributions received 33 111

At 30 June 1,555 1,522

  (i) Contributed equity

   During the reporting years presented, the State Government made contributions to offset dividends paid 
   by Western Power on capital contributions, the sale of land surplus to requirements and for the recovery of 
   income tax equivalent expense on residential capital contributions.

24. Hedging reserve and retained earnings

 (a) Accounting policy

  The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes in the fair value of derivative 
  financial instruments that are designated, and qualify as cash flow hedges in accordance with the accounting 
  policy in note 21(a). Amounts are re-classified to profit or loss when the associated hedge transaction affects 
  profit or loss.
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24. Hedging reserve and retained earnings (continued)

 (b) Movements in hedging reserve

  Movements in the hedging reserve during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note

Interest 
rate 

swaps 
$M

Forward 
exchange 
contracts 

$M

Forward 
domestic 

borrowing 
commitments 

$M
Total 

$M
At 1 July 2019 (47) - (51) (98)
Other comprehensive income or loss for the reporting year:
   Fair value of cash flow hedges:
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (15) - (30) (45)
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 6(b) - - 16 16
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss - (1) - (1)
   Total fair value of cash flow hedges (15) (1) (14) (30)

   Tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges: 7(d)
   Tax equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 5 - 9 14
   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit 
   or loss - - (5) (5)

   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to 
   profit or loss - - - -

   Total tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges 5 - 4 9

Total other comprehensive loss for the reporting year (10) (1) (10) (21)

At 30 June 2020 (57) (1) (61) (119)

At 1 July 2018 (14) - (28) (42)
Other comprehensive income or loss for the reporting year:
   Fair value of cash flow hedges:
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (48) - (49) (97)
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 6(b) - - 17 17
   Total fair value of cash flow hedges (48) - (32) (80)

   Tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges: 7(d)
   Tax equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 15 - 14 29
   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit 
   or loss - - (5) (5)

   Total tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges 15 - 9 24

Total other comprehensive loss for the reporting year (33) - (23) (56)
At 30 June 2019 (47) - (51) (98)

 (c) Movements in retained earnings

  Movements in retained earnings during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
At 1 July 943 875
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 366
Dividends provided for or paid 25 (80) (298)
At 30 June 1,254 943
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25. Dividends

 (a) Accounting policy

  Dividends are provided for in the reporting year in which the dividends recommended by the Board are 
  accepted by the Minister for Energy, with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia. A 
  corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

 (b) Dividends recognised in the reporting years

  During the reporting years presented, the below dividends were declared and paid to the Western Australian 
  State Government:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Final dividend (74) (93)
Special dividend 25(b)(i) (6) (5)
Interim dividend - (200)

(80) (298)

  (i) Special dividend

   During the year ended 30 June 2020, Western Power paid the following special dividends to the State 
   Government:

• three million for the sale of land surplus to requirements (30 June 2019: $5 million)
• three million for the costs of delivering the State Government’s Energy Transformation Strategy (30 June 

2019: nil).

 (c) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year

  (i) 2019/20 interim dividend

   On 3 July 2020, the Minister for Energy accepted with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western 
   Australia, the directors’ June 2020 recommendation for a 2019/20 interim dividend of $216 million. This was 
   not provided for in the accounts in line with Western Power’s accounting policy - the Minister’s acceptance 
   was not in the 30 June 2020 reporting year.

   Western Power paid the $216 million 2019/20 interim dividend to the State Government on 10 July 2020. It 
   was offset by an equity contribution of $79 million received on 9 July 2020.

  (ii) Final 2019/20 dividend

   Since the end of the 30 June 2020 reporting year the directors have resolved to recommend, subject to the 
   approval of the Minister for Energy, a dividend of $300 million for the year ended 30 June 2020, being:

• a final dividend of $293 million in line with Western Power’s current dividend policy (75 per cent of net 
profit after income tax equivalent); plus

• a special dividend of $7 million for the sale of land surplus to requirements.     

   This dividend will be provided for in the accounts once accepted by the Minister for Energy, with the 
   concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia. It is to be offset by an equity contribution subject to 
   approval by the Western Australian State Government.
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In this section
This section presents other information that must be disclosed in compliance with Australian accounting 
standards and other AASB pronouncements, but that are not immediately related to individual line items in 
the financial statements.

Section 5: Other information

26. Related party transactions

 (a) Owner      

  Although Western Power operates as a corporatised enterprise under the Act, it is accountable to and 
  controlled by the Western Australian State Government, via the Minister for Energy, as Western Power’s sole 
  owner and shareholder.

  Related parties of Western Power include: 

• All Cabinet Ministers of the Western Australian State Government (Cabinet Ministers) and their close family 
members, and entities controlled or jointly controlled by them  

• All Western Power directors and executive officers (unless employed for a limited period during the reporting 
year - generally three months or less) and their close family members, and entities controlled or jointly 
controlled by them           

• Other Western Australian statutory authorities and departments, including their related bodies, that are 
included in the State’s whole of government consolidated financial statements    

• Associates and joint ventures of any entities that are included in the State’s whole of government 
consolidated financial statements

• The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB)

 (b) Key management personnel compensation      

  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
  controlling the activities of an entity, either directly or indirectly. Western Power’s key management personnel 
  has been determined to be the State’s Cabinet Ministers, and the directors and executive officers of Western 
  Power. 

  Total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel (excluding State Cabinet Ministers), for the 
  reporting years presented, is below: 

2019/20 
$’000

2018/19 
$’000

Short-term employee benefits 3,457 3,370
Post-employment superannuation benefits 216 210
Long-term benefits 66 65
Termination benefits 345 42

4,084 3,687

  For more detailed Western Power remuneration disclosures refer to the ‘remuneration’ section of the directors’ 
  report within this financial report.

  Total compensation to the State’s Cabinet Ministers is not disclosed because there is no obligation for Western 
  Power to reimburse this amount. Details however, can be found in the ‘2019/20 annual report on state 
  finances’ published on the Western Australian Department of Treasury’s website.
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26. Related party transactions (continued)

 (c) Transactions with related parties

  (i) Key management personnel

   Western Power’s key management personnel and their related parties, conduct transactions with Western 
   Power within normal employee and customer relationships. The terms and conditions are no different to 
   those it is reasonable to expect Western Power would adopt if dealing with the Cabinet Minister, director, 
   executive officer and/or their related party in an arm’s length transaction in similar circumstances.

   Western Power is not aware of material related party transactions with the State’s Cabinet Ministers, the 
   directors and executive officers of Western Power and/or their close family members or entities controlled or 
   jointly controlled by them.          

  (ii) Government-related entities

   During the reporting years presented, Western Power engaged in the below transactions, being significant 
   in terms of size (total annual transaction was in excess of $20 million), with other public sector entities 
   controlled by the Western Australian State Government:

Note
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Receipts
Synergy:
   Transmission and distribution network tariff revenue 1,153 1,125
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Proceeds from borrowings 1,675 925
Department of Treasury:
   Proceeds from contributed equity 23 33 111

Payments
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Repayments of borrowings (1,541) (842)
   Net finance costs paid (245) (266)
Department of Treasury:
   Contributions to tariff equalisation fund 29(c) (171) (198)
   Income tax equivalent paid (91) (129)
   Distributions to equity holder 25 (80) (298)
Department of Finance:
   Payroll tax (24) (22)

Outstanding receivables (current)
Synergy:
   Network tariff receivables 184 171

Outstanding payables (current and non-current)
Department of Finance:
   Tax equivalent liabilities
  Current (22) (14)
  Deferred 17 (950) (889)
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Borrowings (including accrued interest) (7,538) (7,362)
   Forward domestic borrowing commitments 21 (15) (42)

Future commitments
Department of Treasury:
   Tariff equalisation contribution 29(c) (709) (663)
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27. Remuneration of auditors

 (a) Audit services 
  Under the Act, the Auditor General for Western Australia has been appointed Western Power’s independent 
  auditor.              

  The indicative audit fee for the services provided by the Office of the Auditor General for the reporting years 
  presented, are below:           

2019/20 
$’000

2018/19 
$’000

Annual audit of financial statements and other assurance services 449 449

 (b) Non-audit services

  Neither the Office of the Auditor General nor their agent(s) provided any non-audit services during the year 
  ended 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: nil). Non-audit services represent engagements in addition to the statutory 
  and regulatory audit duties of the external auditor.        

28. Contingencies

 Western Power’s policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability of future receipts and/or 
 payments is not considered remote, as well as details of contingencies, which although considered remote, the 
 directors consider should be disclosed.      

 (a) Contingent assets 
  Western Power did not have any contingent assets at 30 June 2020.

 (b) Contingent liabilities

  (i) Contaminated sites 
   Western Power has 133 known or suspected contaminated sites that have been reported to the 
   Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA), 
   although nine of these have shared responsibility with adjacent landowners. Until Western Power conducts 
   an investigation to determine the presence and scope of contamination, assesses the risk and agrees with 
   the DWER the need and criteria for remediation, Western Power is unable to accurately quantify its clean-up 
   liabilities for all known or suspected contaminated sites. 

   Western Power continues to monitor the sites and progressively undertakes site investigations and 
   remediation on a risk-based approach. This approach is consistent with the DWER guidelines.

  (ii) Other 
   Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number of legal claims. Until proceedings 
   relating to these claims are finalised, uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of 
   Western Power.

   In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required in respect of these 
   contingencies, as it is not probable a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required, or the amount is 
   not capable of reliable measurement.          
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29. Commitments

 (a) Lease commitments: non-cancellable operating leases

  Future commitments to minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at the reporting 
  dates presented (including for light and heavy fleet, and properties), are below: 

Minimum lease payments
2019/20 

$M
2018/19 

$M
Payable within one year - 8
Payable later than one year but not later than five years - 12

- 20

  From 1 July 2019, Western Power recognised these leases as right-of-use assets with the corresponding lease  
  liabilities (refer to notes 13 and 20 respectively). This is except where the leases were short-term or for low 
  value assets (refer to note 5(c)).

  In the previous reporting year, Western Power expensed operating lease costs of $8 million to ‘other expenses’ 
  in profit or loss (refer to note 5(c)(i)).

 (b) Capital commitments

  Future capital commitments contracted for as at the reporting dates presented, but for which no amounts 
  have been provided for in the financial statements are below. They include major transmission and distribution 
  capital expenditure largely associated with asset replacements, customer-funded work and undergrounding, plus 
  information technology initiatives.          

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Payable within one year 171 204
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 53 81

224 285

 (c) Other expenditure commitments   

  As at the reporting dates presented, the State Government requires Western Power to make, by notice 
  published in the gazette, the below future annual payments into the tariff equalisation fund for the benefit of the 
  Regional Power Corporation. The 2019/20 reported commitments were gazetted on 22 May 2020.  

2019/20 
$M

2018/19 
$M

Payable within one year 185 171
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 524 492

709 663

  For the year ended 30 June 2020, Western Power made payments of $171 million into the tariff equalisation fund 
  (30 June 2019: $198 million). This expense has been recognised in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss (refer to note 
  5(c)(i)).             

30. Events occurring after the reporting date

 There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2020 and the date of this report that 
 are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations of Western Power, the results of those 
 operations, or the state of affairs of Western Power in subsequent reporting years.     
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31. Changes in accounting policy

 (a) AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

  This note explains and summarises the impact of adopting AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 
  (AASB 15) on Western Power’s financial statements. The mandatory application date was 1 July 2019.

  AASB 15:

• addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of revenue. It replaces a number of 
different accounting standards and interpretations including AASB 118 Revenue which covered revenue 
arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of services, AASB 111 Construction contracts which 
covered revenue arising from construction contracts and AASB Interpretation 18 Transfers of assets from 
customers which covered capital contributions.

• introduces a new pattern of revenue and profit recognition by:
 - establishing the principle revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
  an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a 
  customer, i.e. so the notion of control replaces the notion of risks and rewards
 - providing more substantial application guidance and examples, including a comprehensive five-step 
  recognition and measurement model.

  On adoption of AASB 15, the five-step recognition and measurement model was applied to Western Power’s 
  most significant customer contracts - being for the rendering of regulated network tariff services and sales of 
  materials (approximately 84 per cent of Western Power’s 2019/20 total income), and assessed there was no 
  material impact. This is because:         

• Western Power’s right to consideration from these customers continues to directly correspond to when 
the promised services and goods are provided - being when the network is accessed and used, and the 
materials are sold

• the consideration Western Power receives in exchange for these services and goods continues to be 
significantly fixed at observable stand-alone selling prices - being per regulated tariffs and published 
materials price lists

• it remains highly probable a significant reversal of any variable consideration (i.e. unbilled network tariff 
revenue being approximately 8 per cent of Western Power’s 2019/20 total income) will not be required. 
This is supported by on-going quantitative and qualitative processes for robust and sound measurement, 
including the application of a variable calculation model that applies complex estimation methodologies 

and algorithms, regular reasonableness and deviation monitoring, and periodical independent reviews. 

  For more details on Western Power’s ‘revenue’ accounting policy and the amounts recognised in the current 
  reporting year refer to note 4.
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31. Changes in accounting policy (continued)

 (b) AASB 1058 Income of not-for-profit entities      

  This note explains and summarises the impact of adopting AASB 1058 Income of not-for-profit entities (AASB 
  1058) on Western Power’s financial statements. The mandatory application date was 1 July 2019.

  AASB 1058 addresses the recognition, measurement and disclosure of donation transactions and volunteer 
  services. It largely replaces AASB 1004 Contributions - limiting its scope to parliamentary appropriations to 
  Government departments, administrative arrangements and contributions to/by owners.

  On adoption of AASB 1058, the recognition and measurement requirements were applied to Western Power’s 
  most significant contributions - being capital contributions from developers and customers (approximately 
  13 per cent of Western Power’s 2019/20 total income), and equity contributions from the State Government, 
  and assessed there was no material impact. This is because:

• Western Power’s capital and equity contributions continue to be recognised at a point in time - being when 
the developer or customer is connected to the network in satisfaction of the performance obligation of the 
underlying connection contract, or when the contribution is received

• the consideration Western Power receives for capital and equity contributions continues to be measured in 
accordance with existing accounting standards - being at the received and fair value amounts. 

  For more details on Western Power’s capital and equity contributions accounting policies and the amounts 
  recognised in the current reporting year refer to notes 4 and 23 respectively.

 (c) AASB 16 Leases      

  This note explains and summarises the impact of adopting AASB 16 Leases (AASB 16) on Western Power’s 
  financial statements. The mandatory application date was 1 July 2019.

  AASB 16 replaces AASB 117 Leases, and:

• significantly reforms lessee accounting requirements - making only minor changes to lessor requirements
• introduces a single lessee accounting model under which a lessee must recognise assets and liabilities 

for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value - this has the 
effect of removing the distinction between operating and finance leases.     

  On adoption of AASB 16, Western Power applied the modified retrospective option, and as permitted under 
  the specific AASB 16 transition provisions:

• has not restated comparatives
• has recognised any material cumulative impact on adoption of AASB 16 as an opening balance adjustment 

to retained earnings (at 1 July 2019). 
         

  (i) Practical expedients applied 
   In applying AASB 16 for the first time, Western Power used the following practical expedients as permitted 
   by the standard:

• applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
• accounted for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 July 2019 as 

short-term leases
• excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application
• applied hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or 

terminate the lease
• accounted for each lease component and associated non-lease component(s) as a single lease 

component.
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31. Changes in accounting policy (continued)

 (c) AASB 16 Leases (continued) 
    
  (ii) Measurement of lease liabilities 
   On adoption of AASB 16, Western Power applied the single lessee accounting model and recognised 
   lease liabilities for those previously classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of AASB 117 Leases. 
   This was unless the lease was for a short-term or low-value asset. The lease liabilities were measured at the 
   present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using Western Power’s incremental borrowing 
   rate as of 1 July 2019. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 
   1 July 2019 was 2.2 per cent.

   The measurement of lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019, is as follows:

2019/20 
$M

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 June 2019 (under AASB 117 Leases) 20

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 June 2019 discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate at the date of initial application (on adoption of AASB 16 Leases)

20

Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 (on adoption of AASB 16 Leases) 3
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019 (on adoption of AASB 16 Leases) 23

   The classification of lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019, is as follows:

2019/20 
$M

Current liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities 15
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019 (on adoption of AASB 16 Leases) 23

   For more details on Western Power’s ‘lease liabilities’ accounting policy and the amounts recognised in the 
   current reporting year refer to note 20.  
 
  (iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets 
   On adoption of AASB 16, Western Power recognised the associated right-of use assets at the amount equal 
   to the lease liabilities. This is as follows:

2019/20 
$M

Non-current assets 23
Right-of-use assets recognised at 1 July 2019 (on adoption of AASB 16 Leases) 23

   For more details on Western Power’s ‘right-of-use assets’ accounting policy and the amounts recognised in 
   the current reporting year refer to note 13.         
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31. Changes in accounting policy (continued) 

 (c) AASB 16 Leases (continued)

  (iv) Net impact to retained earnings 
   On adoption of AASB 16, there was no impact to Western Power’s net assets. This is reconciled as follows:

Note
2019/20 

$M
Non-current assets
   Right-of-use assets 31(c)(iii) 23

Current liabilities
   Lease liabilities 31(c)(ii) 8
Non-current liabilities
   Lease liabilities 31(c)(ii) 15
Net assets -

   Hence, no 1 July 2019 opening balance adjustment was recognised against retained earnings on adoption 
   of AASB 16.           
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In the directors’ opinion:

(a) The financial statements and notes comply with Australian accounting standards, other authoritative    
 pronouncements and Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA)  

(b) The financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial position of Western Power as at 30 June  
 2020 and of its performance for the reporting year ended on that date  

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that Western Power will be able to pay its debts as and when they   
 become due and payable  

The directors’ have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the 
reporting year ended 30 June 2020. This is pursuant to section 295(4)(e) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) despite not 
being mandatory for Western Power.  

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 25 August 2020.   

G Martin 
Deputy Board Chair

C Beckett AO 
Board Chair

26 August 2020
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